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ASSEMBLYMAN ANTHONY M. VILLANE, JR. <(Chairman): I
would like to call the Committee members to the table. There
are a couple of them who are still milling around.

Committee members, I want to thank you for taking time
out of your busy schedules. I want to indicate that no one
else in the State Legislature is meeting today except you, so I
want to thank you for coming down here to cooperate on this
projéct.

‘ - Thank you, everyone, for being here. Today is the
second meeting of the Special Committee on College Alcohol
Abuse and Hazing in the State of New Jersey. The purpose of
the meeting today is to discuss with students, fraternities —-
both national and local fraternities -- the eating clubs, and
those pedple who participate in our college atmosphere, to see
if there is a problem, number one -- which we think there is —-
and number two, to try to develop some legislation that can
help out. ’ | ‘

_ I would 1like to make it clear in the beginning that
this is going to be a constructive meeting. It is not going to
‘be one to point a fiﬁgér at anyone. It will be a'meéting where
the young people will have a right to wvoice their opinions
about what is going on, and also have an opportunity to talk to
their legislators. _ »

Unfortunately, it seems as though when we talked to
the college presidents and the deans of the universities, they
all said they have an active program to indicate to incoming
students what the problems are with alcchol. They talked about
hazing; they talked about alcohol abuse; and they spoke to what
the ?olicies are on the campuses. It is fairly obvious, with
the death of the young man at Rutgers, and with almost 50
people getting so drunk they 'had to be hospitalized, or put
into an infirmary at Princeton, that there is a problem at the
colleges and universities. It is a problem we should be

working on.




The pblicies; unless they work, are just as good as
the paper they are written on, and are not going to protect any
young people in our colleges. On this Committee, we have to
almost come~to. :.a-conclusion that the State .Legislature has to
do something about -it=*:The old observatiom<that: young people:
in college always drank; and always will drink, underage.  .or
not, really does not sit well with a good number of the people
in the State Legislature. We are not ready to accept that
fact, and we are not ready to cave in to the pressures of
whoever -— whatever industry it is that has something to gain
from this, to allow our young people to drink themselves drunk,
or to drink themselves to death. ' _

' New Jersey has tough laws. The laws in New Jersey
prohibit »drinking under the age of 21. They also prohibit
hazing, or even an act to attempt to haze, which might endanger
someone's physical or mental condition. I want to let you know
that we on this Committee are willing to put in the time to
make constructive changes in the law, and in the habits in the
State of New Jersey. A _
 As'1I said, this is the second of these meetings. The
third meeting will be a meeting at which we are going to ask
the Division of Motor Vehicles to come in. We are going to ask
the ABC -- the Alcohol Beverage Control Division -- to come
in. We are going to ask for the campus pclice to come in to
tell us what the problems are: how many calls they're getting,
where they are; what is the disposition of complaints about
drunkenness, or underage drinking. We are also ‘going to be
calling in some local police.

So, before we are finished, we would like to really
get a good picture of what is going on in the colleges in the
State of New Jersey. - It 1is extremely frustrating for me, as
the Chairman of this Committee, to get phone calls from
parents, who say, "You know, I sent my 18-year-old daughter off
to college, and I am really worried about what is happening to




her." It is difficult for this Committee Chairman to interview
young people, who want to remain anonymous, who said that the
peer pressure -to drink :is..so heavy, that it is very-difficult
to. function w©n -a vcollege--campus ‘because :of:'it." 2 There are
stories - about ¥young women waking up completely unclothed, not
‘knowing where they have been, or who they have been with; about
young men waking up not knowing where they got drunk, or how
drunk they did get.

So, I think there is a problem; I know there is a
problem; and I hope we can solve it together.

I have someone here whom I have known for a number of
years, who 1is going to start off our meeting -- Ms. Eileen
Stevens. .I'll say it for her before she comes up. She lost a
son, a‘ydung man who was at a college. She lost him because
there was a hazing problem, and because he was forced to drink
himself to death. Since then, Ms. Stevens has been an advocate
of helping to solve this problem. Ms. Stevens, would you
please come up here in front? There is a microphone with a
little white button on it. If you will press it, it will turn
that mike on. o o ' | R '

While Ms. Stevens is getting ready, I would like to
have my Ccmmittee introduce themselves. Would you start on
this side, Clare?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: I am Assemblywoman Clare
Farragher. I represent the Twelfth District, part of Monmouth
County. '

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: My name is Tom Shusted. I am an
Assemblyman, and I represent the Sixth Legislative District,
Cherry Hill/Haddonfield.

ASSEMBLYMAN DUCH: My name is Thomas J. Duch. I am a
‘new Assemblyman from the Thirty—SiXth District, Bergen and
Passaic Counties. _ :

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: My name is George Spadoro. I am
an Assemblyman from the Eighteenth District, part of which
includes the Cook Campus of Rutgers University.




- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And I am Assemblyman Anthony
Villane.— --'I represent ' the Eleventh Legislative District,
coastal- Monmouth: :Ms...Stevens?:i-:--.- e r T mor L
EILEEN. STEVENS: T:would-like" tofthank Assemblyman
Villane and the members of .the.:.Committee for .their Kkind
invitation for me to be with you for a short time today.

As Assemblyman Villane‘just indicated, the subject of
fraternity hazing and alcohol abuse is something I am painfully
familiar with. Ten years ago, my son, Chuck, died of acute
alcohol poisoning and exposure, after being locked in a car
trunk with two other pledges in freezing weather. He was given

a pint of bourbon, a six-pack of beer, and a fifth of wine, and
" told he must.consume it before he would be released. He was
then takeh to the fraternity house and left to sleep it off.
He never woke up.

This was the traditional initiation requirement to
belong to his fraternity, Klan Alpiné, a local fraternity at
ilfred University. The senseiess_loss of my son was compounded
by the fact that, although Chuck died and two other pledges
- were hospitalized in critical condition, no one "was held
accountable. Other than temporary probation, the fraternity
continued to operate, and the university assumed no
responsibility. |

This prompted me to seek anti-hazing legislation in
New York State —— which after one failure was eventually passed
—— and to found my organization, which attempts to bring
attention to a subject that for years has been condoned,
accepted by some, and swept under the carpet. My work is not
anti-fraternity, but anti-hazing, and all of the abuses which
accompany it, which 99% of the time include alcohol.

I have shared Chuck's story at hundreds of colleges
across the country, conferences, and fraternity conventions,
and in my travels and research I have come to realize how many
tragedies are similar to Chuck's -and James Callahan's.




Coercive peer pressure to consume alcohol as an entrance
requirement ‘to fraternities exists on campuses throughout the
country. ' To- my Knowledge, 43 hazing-related deaths have
occurred -since my:son's; ‘in a period:..of less~than' 10 years.:
Countless ~numbers havebeen: injured ‘and .‘abused;:and +F-am 'mot
sure ~we::really- know. the true number, -because .so many go
unreported, and many are categorized as accidents.

I have worked closely with national fraternities which
have embraced my ‘cause and encouraged my work, but despite
attempts by national fraternities and state anti-hazing laws,
which now exist in 29 states, obviously the problem continues.
Anyone who has an opportunity to observe or read "Newsweek" on .
campus from last week will, I am suré, be very shocked at some
of the révelations and 1incidents that have taken place in
~ recent years. |

I feel that although state 1laws are poWerful
deterrents and do focus attention on the issue, as well as
strengthen the hands of college officials, much more needs to
be done, before the fact. Alcohol education is something our
YOung‘peoplevére painfully inadequate with. They are unaware
~of the ramifications. And how many young people have died

because their peers thought they would sleep it off?

' College officials should evaluate their policies.
They should update and strengthen them. Alcohol and hazing
policies are painfully inadequate, in some cases, and do not
have clear definitions. College officials should publicize and
make examples of inappropriate behavior. Highlighting this
‘behavior will send out a clear signal that it will not be
tolerated. Perhaps they should mandate attendance at a seminar
or workshop that should be held each semester, at which time
copies and explanations of their alcohol and hazing policies
could be distributed. This is also an opportune time for words
of wisdom to be given by the dean, the college president, a
college attorney, a campus safety official. I have attended

(&)}




such seminars at Syracuse, Binghamton, and other places
throughout : the country, and. they are very. . positive. . Very
often, .the Greeks and..similar organizations: feel“very good that
a.specific-night r'was<set: aside just:for' thém: R S O e SR

~-—" 7> Existing laws and. college regulatlons must be enforced
for.them to work. Like any law we have on the books, they
aren't worth the paper they are written on if we do not enforce
them. ‘ |

To eliminate Greek organizations, which some campusesA
have done, or wash your hands of them, is not a practical
solution. Then there is no guidance, because they will operate
on their own. Working with them is to everyone's benefit, for
these org&nizationsvcan, and do make a significant contribution
to a campds or a community.

I feel there 1is a growing desire among today's
students for structure, guidance, and discipline. The 1lag
resulting in the complete extrication of in loco parentis ‘in
the late '60s to its limited reintroduction in the '80s, 1is a
large ‘part of the problem ~ Rules regulating student 1life
outside the classroom need to be imposed, and institutions- of
higher learning, unquestionably, have an obligation to preserve
and protect an extracurricular environment conducive to civil
obedience.

If college administrations and fraternity officials
fulfill their responsibility to serve as role models and
provide the guidance, you will be seeing more responsible
students and less destructive behavior. As lawmakers, I urge
you to strengthen the existing laws, if need be, and make them
workable.

James Callahan and my son, Chuck, and victims 1like
them, were senseless tragedies that could have been prevented.
Although incidents such as these are often categorized as
accidental and 1isolated, they are neither. Hazing and/or
‘drinking requirements are planned, premeditated activities a




good part of the time, that take place far more often than
anyone “realizes. .- They are shrouded in secrecy, and take place
behind closed doors. :: ot o oo L o el
'ﬁnnﬁj:Thelhaféﬁtruth is;, i:callege :officials know when hell

weeks take 'place and initiations -are: going on. *They :must:
intervene and take swift disciplinary action, expulsion if
necessary, and stop taking a back seat. Fraternity officials
have a responsibility, as well, to remove from membership those
who do not adhere to the rules. Hazing, in every form, must be
eliminated, and hazing often goes hand in hand with alcohol
abuse. Alternatives must be implemented in all programs.
Hazing and alcohol pose a dangerous threat to the very future
existence of Greek organizations. It is time for all of us to
do our paft, to do whatever we can, whatever we must, so that
James Callahan's and Chuck's deaths, and other tragedies, are
not repeated. )

- Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Ms.
Stevens. I know how difficult it is for you to talk about this
all the time. I personally appféciate your work, and I know
the Committee does, too. _ _

Are there any questions from the Committee members?
(no response) I know you have another engagement, but I would
like you to stay, ifbyou would, for just the next thing we are
going to do. _ _ :
In the course of the last month or so, I have had a
number of phone calls and contacts with young cdllege students
—— some of your colleagues at different schools in the State of
New Jersey. I asked them on Wednesday if they would sit down
and talk to me and tell me what it 1s really like on the

campus. All of them were somewhat concerned about peer
pressure, both from their friends and from people they didn't
know on their campuses, and also their effect -- what would

happen to them at the college level. They agreed to testify




for me, and we have a very short tape on which four young women
and one young.man tell us what it is like to 'go to college in
the .State. oaf New. Jersey. I would like to show that tape to
you, 1if Iﬁmayrerou'arEaall,welcomg_toigétiallittle closer::to
ite-x< I am sorry: we:rionly::have .:one:zisctreen :and:=it 1iS§-=-rather
small. :.Why don't.the Committee members ‘go -around here, so they
can see it? '

(Taped interviews are shown at this point; not
transcribable.)

Thank you very much for being so attentive.

Before you leave, Ms. Stevens, there is one question
from the panel. I wonder if you would--

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Ms. Stevens, hi. Just one
question. 'You mentioned there was some legislation passed in
New York following the accident involving your son. Did this
legislation have anything to do with hazing specifically?

'MS. STEVENS: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Assemblyman Spadoro, 1let her
answer through your microphone, so that everyone can hear her. _

MS. STEVENS: It was specifically focused toward
hazing. It involved coercive peer pressure to drink. Existing
laws did not apply, because the victims are often considered
willing participants. Because Chuck —-- although this was never
proven —— supposedly went along with what was asked of him -—-
and very often pledges do, Dbecause I think they are
unsuspecting and unaware of exactly what is in store for them
because of the secrecy -- the existing laws were not
applicable. So the victims became accessories. Therefore,
there had to be specific legislation. Since it was enacted in
1980, it has been strengthened, and they are in the process of
attempting to strengthen it again, because they feel it doesn't
have enough teeth in it. '

So the laws, as I sald before in my testimony, are not
always workable, but I think we have an obligation to put
something on the books and make whatever we can workable.




ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: You may not  be able. to answer
this,but:since: the ' law -was 'passed), * have you . gotten any
feedback... about--whether:, it has had 'any impae¢t: on' _hazing: at
campuses AnmNew YOrk?:: ¢ 07 woioo oo ogon oo Tianlo cliior fo

MS. . .STEVENS: .. Well, - certainly . the - problem still
exists, but I feel it has had an impact because in the wording
—— in the language of New York's law, they strongly suggest
putting on a seminar or a workshop such as I mentioned. And
now —— which, in my mind, college officials should have been
doing all along —— they focus a great deal of attention on an
issue that really they had not addressed before. So the
students are at least being armed with some information and,
some statistics and facts. They are given something tangible
to walk out of that auditorium with; something they can learn
from. The national fraternities have done this, as well. They
are sharing the updated policies, the alternatives to hazing,
and their resolutions with the students, to show them that they
are there to work with theém, to help them, and that they are’
.-opposed to this, as well. o .

'ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Thank you very much.

MS. STEVENS: You're welcome.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Assemblyman. Thank
you again, Ms. Stevens. A

I would now like to have Mr. Michael Sauter, a student
from Drew University, and Mr. Paul Herrle, also from Drew
University. Please just have a seat up here, and press that
white button to put on that little mike there.

PAUL HETRRLE: I am Paul Herrle. I hope you don't
mind if we €£flip-flop in the order a 1little bit. We have
prepared this way.

As I am sure I don't have to tell any of you, no
change ever occurs in a vacuum. Also, as I am sure I don't
have to tell you, when a piece of legislation is passed, there
are always some effects which occur which aren't inherent to




the intended change, but which were either outside the realm of
control, .or they.were not predictable at all. ‘
+—=...... ~ Drew.University can provide.us with an example of this
whichs«is 1highlyrwrekevant to our topic of alcohol abuse and
hazing on+c¢ollege:campuses..  Drew banned - kegs:this-year; im-:an
attempt tao promote responsible drinking on: campus.- Their claim
was that by eliminating kegs, they would necessarily eliminate
the "kick the keg" mentality which existed at parties, whereby
students would drink more than they had intended, in order to
take chest-pounding pride in having finished every drop from
the keg. ‘

The theory behind the keg ban is solid. The side

effects, however, have been numerous, and they have also been
dangerous. ‘While adherence to the keg ban has been relatively
good, one should not take this to mean that this type of
irresponsible drinking has stopped. These energies have simply
been diverted into other outlets.
' More and more Drew students are drinking harder .
~alcohol in smaller groups in their rooms. They have been
‘forced inside. While it is rare that you would find a
campus-wide party now, it would not be surprising to find 10 té
20 parties on any given night. They are small private parties,
involving graih alcohol, involving tequila, vodka, rum, and
other hard 1liquors. Some of the effects of these types of
parties are clear. First of all, as opposed to larger parties,
small parties are more difficult for the residential life staff
to monitor and supervise. Under these conditions, the reaction
time of the staff in an alcohol-related emergency situation is
likely to be slowed down very much. Also, because college
drinking is not strictly social drinking, but is also drinking
just for its own sake, if a person would normally drink, say,
nine 12-ounce beers in three hours, they are just as likely to
drink nine 12-ounce glasses of a mixture, including grain
punch, in the same amount of time.

10




Also, with alcohol's properties as a depressant, it
séemS‘counteréintuitiveAto want_ to._force. students into smaller
and smaller.. parties;: where. there  is much:less~peermsupervision
involved. iThisyis -especially in:- light:of: thecwrising suicide
rate -on ctollege: campuses.: : LTt wpmrepimes T T

~ - “Lastly, :with: -the' increase - in the number = of - small
private parties, there 1is a corresponding decrease in the
opinion of the student body toward the social life on campus.
What this does then, is to force people to drive to bars off
campus -— have a night off campus -- and then somehow make
their way back to campus after an all-night drinking spree.
While the theory behind the designated driver program is an
excellent one, in practice, however, it is often disregarded.
| As'fdr as very serious alcohol-related emergencies go,
it is always very difficult to get that kind of information on
this topic, as it isn't something that universities would like
to acknowledge, or to make public knowledge. I am a resident
assistant at Drew University, so I hear, through my colleagues,
of any of the residents on their floors, or in their dorms, who
have had to undergo some sort of treatment. The worst I have
heard of this year, was maybe three or four cases of students
who have been so drunk that they have spent nights just at the
infirmary. No one ever had to go to the hospital,'but they
have spent nights in the infirmary because they were either a
danger to themselves or to other people. |

‘Alcochol abuse on Drew's campus, then, I would estimate
as being bad, but not as bad as on some other campuses of which
I have heard. Alcohol abuse is on the increase, however, due
‘directly to a policy which was 1intended to diminish
irresponsible drinking. While the fact that Drew's social life
has taken a dramatic nose dive this year may not seem directly
related to the problem which you are now facing, it may soon
become, however, a major part of this problem. Beyond what I
have already mentioned about chésing éeople to bars off campus,
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a decline in social 1life 1is also 1likely to induce people to
look - towards groups- which can ‘provide them:with' some semblance
of 'a..social :life;::andthese~are :precisely:-the=groups- -which
eéngade:in thé:linkage:q@f the 'improper .use of alcohol:and hkazing:

At Drew, -where we have no fraternities or sororities,
our sports teams serve this sort of similar purpose. While I
would never purport to suggest any sort of legislation, given
the complexities of the issue, I would urge that all possible
side effects are looked into with whatever you do decide on.

With that, I would like to defer to Michael Sauter,
who has been a member of two of the three varsity sports which
would be engaging in these types of activities. .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Before you do that, Paul, I
would like to-— You're an RA at the school?

MR. HERRLE: Yes, I am.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: According to the testimony of
the young people who talked to us on the tape, RAs do not
really strictly enforce the law —— that it is against the law
- to drink in New Jersey if you are under 21. Is that similar to
what happens at your school? | o B .

MR. HERRLE: Yes, it is similar to my school. It is
difficult to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I understand.

MR. HERRLE: It depends a lot on the resident director
-— on his or her attitude toward underage drinking. Basically,
he or she will instruct his or her staff on how to handle it.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It is pretty obvious that you
are aware that people under the age of 21 are drinking in their
rooms and having parties. ‘ ”

MR. HERRLE: Oh, sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you know the laws with regard
to serving someone under 21 in the State of New Jersey?

MR. HERRLE: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What is the law?

12




MR. HERRLE: That someone.under 21 cannot drink.

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you  know- the :penalty -for
serving someone: under - 21?: - oo e oo
cnagnun. GMROHERRLE: - NO, 5 s vmores i T miemries e o S T

ASSEMBLYMAN:-VILLANE: - You:don'tr know that?2: .. .riviss,

... MR,.HERRLE: . No.. _ : . L L -

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you have an Alcohol Awareness
Program at Drew? ’

MR. HERRLE: We do not have on campus —- which is what
I would suggest -— anything that 1s across-the-board and
comprehensive, especially in the first few days of the school
year. What we get are symposiums revery once in a while
scattered throughout the school year.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you know what the hazing laws
are in the State of New Jersey?

MR. HERRLE: No, I don't.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You're an RA?

MR. HERRLE: Yes. :

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Okay. You have never been
'éounseled as to what haZing laws are, and what a hazing offense
is? You have never been counseled as to what the penalties are
for serving someone underage or presenting false proof?

MR. HERRLE: No. -

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You don't know those penalties?

MR. HERRLE: Not the penalties, no. -

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Okay.' Tom, do you have a
question?

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Yes, I have one question. You
made a comment about the fact that drinking is on the increase
due to school policy? ﬁ '

MR. HERRLE: Excuse me? Drinking is on the increase—-

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: I think you testified that, in
your judgment, drinking is on the increase on college campuses,
due to policy. Is that the poliéy of the school?

13




MR. HERRLE: It is the policy of the school. What has
‘happened with the:keg ban,:-as I said, isithat it:forced people
into :having-:smaller: and’ smaller parties, and drinking harder
“alcohols. FiAlsarasil éaid, they are drinking the same amount —-
the same amountiaf -liquid, ‘the same “amount of beverage -- which
in a hard alcohol is getting a lot drunker, and promoting a lot
more irresponsible drinking.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Well, maybe I misunderstood you,
but does the school 1itself set a- policy as far as the
parameters of drinking are concerned? .

MR. HERRLE: The school has a no keg policy. They
also have a policy which sets limits to the number of people.
It says you have to register a party in advance. It says you
have to list‘all the people who attend the parties.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is that, in practice, really
done? Be honest with us, because we need some help.

MR. HERRLE: Well, see, the rules are so stringent
that they are laughed at, and they are many times ignored.
That is what is causing the underground parties.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That is what Mr. Shusted meant.

MR. HERRLE: Oh, I'm sorry. And also. an adversary
relationship between the students and the residence life staff,
and also between the students and the administration. '

' ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: So, it's really a lack of
enforcement of the policy? » -

MR. HERRLE: It is difficult to enforce. There could
be a party next-door to me -- right next-door to me -- with
eight to ten people at it, and all drinking hard alcohol, and
unless I had a noise complaint, or had some kind of a sneaky
suspicion, I could very conceivably not even know it was going
on, and there could be three or four of these going on
throughout the dorm. We ‘don't make it a practice to knock on
everyone's door, you know, every night that we are on duty, to
find out what is going on. We do get a lot of information,
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both from when we find people, and also from other people, as
to what:has.ibeen:going on. What we can then do is just kind of
makeAavmentalunotefofait =—.that his person was extremely:drunk
on this night'-- This!'person was-also éxtremely: .drunk-on-another
night. -~ And when._it: starts to get to the:point:where:you think
it is a problem, in conjunction with your resident director: and
also with some of the help you can get at the counseling
center, that 1is when our counseling responsibilities begin to
take shape. .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Assemblyman Shusted.

I would 1like now to go to your colleague, Mr. Michael
Sauter, a student at Drew. 7 »
MICHAEL SAUTER: As a student at Drew University,
which does not have any frats, I find that what takes the place
of the frats often are the'athletic teams. I have been on two
athletic teams at Drew University, and I can assure you that
hazing does exist. It does not necessarily exist in the same
manner as it may exist when'frying to get into a fraternity,
because getting on an athletic team is not baséd'upon how much
you can drink. But there is a certain amount of what we might
-call "implicit coercion, " expecting someone to go that far.

I speak to you today as a non-drinker. I am a person
who has managed to make it through three years of college
without bowing down to some of the pressures I Thave
experienced. In all honesty--— '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Michael, I don't mean to
interrupt you, but what specifically are the pressures for an
underage student at your school?

MR. SAUTER: Well, if I may just explain how we would

do things. 'Say you are an athlete; you enter a college
campus. You start to hear things early on about, "Oh, the
initiation is «coming wup," saying the initiation 1is next

Friday. You never really know what you are going to have to
do, but you want to be on this team, you want to be friends
with your teammates, so you go to this party.
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You are then presented with the proposition that—— 1In
one particular case,. there was a pitcher: of beer. -You ‘had to
drink -the..entire..pitcher without-removing your "lips .-from the
beer;::but :you. could take:whatever:amount:.of: timeé :you ‘wanted.:to
take. . Arulotsief guysy=z:as: far::as ‘I: knew from thertime I ‘was.
there, immediately. went :outside and -threw up :everything .they
had just drank. You never really know what is going to happen
until you are there. You are just told you are expected to
drink this; you are expected to do this. There is no, "We're
going to break your legs," or "We're not going to let you on
the team," but it is implicit coercion. It is something that a
freshman in particular is very susceptible to.

Now,: unless you have certain strongly held
convictions, ‘unless you ‘are bigger than anyone else on the
team, let's Jjust say, you are going to have a problem with
that.v If you are really seeking to gain admission into the
inner group, you are placing yourself in a position where you
have tobgo along. N

‘ 'Persdnally; I have seen some things that have made me
pretty sick. A party:is a team party; It is officially a team
event, and you must go there. So, as an athlete, as a member
of the team, I have to be there. I have to take at least a
minimal part in the party, which is to say that-- A lacrosse
party, for instance, will start at nine o'clock, and from nine
until ten will be the time that all of the lacrosse players are
allowed 1in. This 1is the secrecy that has been discussed
before. You are locked in a room. It may be a suite; it may
be a triple, which is a bigger room than our average rooms.

 ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is this off campus Or on campus?

MR. SAUTER: This is in the dorm, sir. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: In the dorm, good.

MR. SAUTER: The games often extend beyond simply
getting the person drunk. There are things called "haircuts,"
shaving over the ears. We had a situation this year where, for
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the first time, at least since I was there -- and ‘I think the
first. time .in: anyone's memory -- the freshmen simply said, "No,
we will .pot have our:-hair:'cut:”: And..guess..what?: :-It:.:didn!'t
lrappen .~'"The-only 'pedple who had.their:hair cut:were:the-:peopte
who ‘volunteered,” who were a: little bit more gung.ho than the
others. .

It is the type of situation, at least at Drew, from my
experiences, where because you cannot be thrown off the team
for not drinking—— A captain can't go up to the coach and say,
"Look, so and so didn't drink his pitcher of beer last night.
I want him off the team." The coercion can't go as far, for
instance, as it might in a frat. But I assure you, it still
exists. ¥ '
As Paul was saying, the keg ban has played directly
into' the hands of groups who are traditionally into smaller
parties. In a keg situation, you would go to your RA——- If
Paul were my RA, which he is, I would say, "Paul, I'm having a
party. I am going to have a keg." He would go to the RD, and
the RD would say, "Are you going to have a keg? Where is the
party going to be?" We might have it in a suite; we might have
it in a particular:cellar'room which is set aside for parties.
But there would be at'least some minimal supervision. An RA
would stick his nose in at the party. He would look around; he
would see what was going on. '

In the case of the keg ban, people are moving into
smaller groups already. - And what you have happening 1is, as
Paul pointed out, the wuse of harder alcohol. Hazing 1is
traditionally a type of situation where you don't have many
people to begin with, so the party is more secret than it was
in the first place, even to the extent where-— Coaches used to
know when an initiation was going on. ©Now, it gets to the
point where they don't even know that an initiation is going on.

So, a logical extrapolation from that, might be to
simply ban alcohol completely on campus. But I think that what
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we have shown is that the more regulations we put in, the more
regulations .we put in front of students, the more:-likely: it is
that they.zare=geing.: to.go deeper underground;-and the deeper
the: problem dsyngoingztoibecomenna wnels unin Lot Wains ChT puosic

.. ASSEMBLYMAN': VILLANE: : : Thank:iyou .very::much; Michael::
When -we spoke to the pres1dents last week, they kind of
indicated that their solution to some of these parties and
drunkenness, was to implement the keg ban. The keg ban merely
says that you can't bring in a half a barrel or a barrel of
beer. It doesn't say that you can't bring in six cases of beer.

MR. SAUTER: Absolutely.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It is a prohibition against a -
particular type of container. Is that the way it works at Drew?

MR. SAUTER: Yes, sir. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Any questions? Assemblyman Duch?

ASSEMBLYMAN DUCH: Mr. Chairman, I would 1like to
- direct my question to Paul, the resident advisor. I know you
" can't see me (referring to the fact that there are TV cameras
and cameramen between the Assemblyman and the witness), but my
VqUestion is: How do you balance yoﬁr pdSition‘as an'RA'against
a good reiationship with the students? 1In other words, how do
you balance the need to enforce the policies of the schocol
against a good relationship with the students, so that the
students don't say, "Gee, we can't say anything to Paul," or
"Let's hide from Paul"? How do you balance it?

MR. HERRLE: It is very'difficult. You have touched
upon one of the basic problems. This 1is one that we are
briefed on. You can take a few different approaches. One is
to be very cordial, you know, to be very civil with them. You
know what is going on, and you kind of allow it to go on. Then
they feel that they are not hiding anything from you. 1In that
way, you can see, hopefully, when there is a problem. You're
risking a lot, but you can see when a person hés been drunk one

too many times, and then go through the proper channels.




On Drew's campus —— it is a very small campus -— to
get into an adversary relationship with anyone .is .a. difficult
thing to do, because, you know, _he tells.his.friends, ‘and :seon
and: so.:ion,: amd csuddenly::an:reighth of the campus knows I am a
stickler and:ryourhave to keep away:from:me;:cnot -just in  those
types of situations, “but in all types of situations. I am not
at Drew just as a resident assistant, but also as a student and
as one of their colleagues; one of their friends.

ASSEMBLYMAN DUCH: Have you ever reported anyone to
the authorities on the. campus?

MR. HERRLE: Oh, sure. This year, two or three times,
but not necessarily to authorities. I reported to authorities
on two kegs we found, and those were quickly—— They were
confiscated. -1 have reported peopie who I believed had
drinking problems, after having discussed this with my resident
director —-- people we thought had a drinking problem -- to
counseling centers. And you make sure that person goés to a
counseling center.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much. I would
like to ask you one other question before'I‘givé anyone else -
the opportunity. What is the disposition of a problem, when as
an RA you find a number of people drunk, or a few people &runk,
and they are underage? What do you do?

MR. HERRLE: Well, underage, 1initially, becomes a
secondary issue. The first concern, obviously, is for safety.
You make sure there is no one who is a danger to himself or to
others. If there is any doubt at all, then that person 1is
immediately brought to the infirmary, and we let those people
make the distinction. » '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You are not concerned about any
violations. You are concerned about the health factors.

MR. HERRLE: Not initially. I think you have to

prioritize things.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: As you all know, I'm sure, some
people:‘understand  that if*you drink :a lot on:an empty:.stomach,
you get:-sick,but.you're: not..drunk.:. ¥ou:know -that's not true,
I --hHope. ~nl hope YGﬁikﬁQW»th&ﬁ*@ﬂCOhOl poisoning :occurs: bécause:
of the consumption of -a certain amount of alcohol—-— ..... Rl LIUEE

MR. HERRLE: Right. o

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: --and it 1is - an old wives' tale
that drinking on an empty stomach and getting sick absolves you -
of any effect from the alcohol. I think everybody ought to
know that. - The young people we have seen who have died from
alcohol, died from alcohol poisoning, not from being drunk or
from being hurt.

Okay, : thank you very much. We appreciate your very
frank testimony. ' ' | '

- ASSEMBLYMAN  SPADORO: -Mr. Chairman, just one
additional question, if I might.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes, Assemblyman Spadoro?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: To either of the gentlemen: Is
there any program provided to 1ncom1ng freshmen regarding the
risks —— the health risks from alcohol abuse? _

MR. HERRLE: 1I'll take this, since I am on the campu§
with thé freshmen a week early. When I was a freshman, no,
there was not. This year, through the residential life staff,
there was no such program. Through the Orientation Committee,
there very well may have been, but we have heard nothing about
it. That was one'of my suggestions. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: So, there is no program this
year. Is there any mandatory program for RAs?

MR. HERRLE: The RAs have dinner meetings, and we are
briefed-- We have had two meetings already so far this year
which were on alcohol abuse and alcoholism.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Okay, fine. Thank you.

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much. We
appreciate your testimony.
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I would now like to present Mr. Bryan White, a student
from Princeton University: Mr. White? e g . A
B.RYA.N... W.INTER: Thank you-very much, Mr. Chairman.
With:me today~is Mri: Scott iConover,.. President:.of the.Inter~Club:
Council ~at: Princeton: University. ~He: will be speaking after me,
although he. is: not ‘on your- list. He might be able to help you
answer some questions.

My name 1is wrong here on the witness list. It is
Bryan Winter. i

I thank you for the opportunity to speak with you this
morning on a very important matter. Before I begin, I would
like to state that these views are my own views. I do not
represent any - specific group at Princeton University.' But
these views have been refined from what tend to be with many
members of the community, including alumni, students, parents,
facuity,'and administration. I hope my presence will help us
to better understand what happened at Princeton, and make some
positive movement toward rectifying the situation.

I am. a junior at the_uniVefsity. I am also a member
of the now infamous Charter Club. To understand the .events of
that night, one must first understand what explicitly an eating‘
club is, and the role it plays in any university community.
" There are 13 eating clubs. Eight of the 13 have their
membership chosen by lottery, and the other five are selected.
Each club is an independent entity, has its own funding, and is
controlled by its own graduate board of trustees. The everyday
occurrences of the club are controlled by the undergraduate
student officers. ’

~ The clubs provide approximately 90% of the juniors and
seniors with their meals, and account for the vast majorify of
the social life. When the legal drinking age was raised from
18 to 21, the clubs voluntarily gave up their liquor 1licenses.
An interesting note here, gentlemen, is that after recently
speaking with many alumni, I realized that the problem we had
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recently did not exist years before the drinking age was raised.
- There used to be a pub.on campus, as some of the other
studerits have . spoken—of, -and - there faculty ‘members, students,
and - administrators: would=-all:meet. to . diseuss:the:businessiof
the day and.éur:scholarlyaendeavorSmﬂ-They would .sit: around
with--a glass of. sherry or beer and some pizza. If a student
was found druhk, he was taken home by the proctors and brought
to an administrator. There he was asked if there were problems
that needed to be discussed. If not, he was warned not to
behave in this manner again. |
Specifically at Princeton, there is a certain problem
that must be addressed. The line between the university and
the clubs is very fuzzy. The past several years, an ongoing
lawsuit has meandered its way through our State's judicial
system, as you probably know. The Sally Frank v. Tiger and Ivy

Club is a 1lawsuit in which Sally Frank, a recent graduate,
desires the clubs to be labeled as a distinct part of the
university, thereby making them accountable to New Jersey civil
rights laws. In the last round of this battle -- excuse my
ignorance for court; I am not a lawyer yet —— the clubs were.
ruled a distinct part of the university. The case is now under
appeal. v )

The events of the evening at the Charter Club were as
foilows: I arrived at the Charter Club at approximately 10
p.m.> The party was well under way. What I saw when I walked
in the door was not a pretty sight. There were several very
sick people. It was a very frightening experience. What if
one of these very sick people had iapsed into a coma, had gone
- into shock and stopped breathing? Whe would have known what to
do? '

The party was obviously getting out of hand. The
social chairman realized what was happening, and she began to
shut the party down. The party was shut down within an hour.
The initiations at the Charter Club go 1like this: The
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initiates are led from room to room through the entire club as
if it were: a maze:: Each:room has a certain theme. .. An example
of _one -of .-the ~themes. . was,::."Let's Make:a Deal,'" the 0ld -game
out jumped.a gentleman with a drink. . Semer oz T o=l LT

There. are :three reasons why this year's initiations
were more intense than préVious years. Primary among these was
the presence of hard liquor. As the gentlemen before stated,
with hard liquor, it is much easier to get drunk to a point of
danger than with beer.

Second, the dichotomy of the club membership itself
augmented the problems of the evening. The club has a high
percentage of large athletes. Athletes party very often, and
they are usually much better drinkers. They can handle'their
alcohol better, so to speak. The other half of the membership
are not as physically large and do not party as often. They
tried to keep up with the larger, more capable athletes. This
was not a wise course of action. Yet, many of the people
showed'selférestraint,_and nothing happened to them. They were

This is not to Say,'gentlemen and ‘ladies, that all of
the blame rests on irresponsible individuals. Peer pressure is
developed out of that mass mentality that exists with the
ritual spirit of initiations. People have a better ability to
lose themselves in a crowd than they do alone. ‘

' The results of that evening, as you Kknow, made
headlines from coast to coast. The fact that it occurred at

Princeton, as one newspaper labeled it, "The Ivory Tower," made
the story even better news. Almost 40 people went to the
university infirmary. Seven people, 1including one 1in an

alcohol-induced <coma from the cloistering, were taken to
Princeton Medical Center. These numbers were extremely high,
and they revolted me, yet they do not represent the fact that
everyone at the university-- There was a greater accessibility
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to these health services, especially with the specifically
procured. .vans for- the evening utilized-to transpart the sick to
the McCosh Infirmary:+: o=, Lo o fais o -
i . 1:The universitys;:: . in. conjunctionzzwith': the .:club; -has
since then created:task iforees: to: better educate the students
to the dangers -of -alcohol: abuse, " with  :-the- help .of &
professional alcohol counselor. The Borough of Princeton,
having investigated the incident, believes it must prosecute
several undergraduate officers for serving alcohol to minors.
The clubs in general have begun invoking stricter requirements
for proof of age to get to the taps. The Charter Club and
Cloister have been taken off tap indefinitely by their graduate
boards. : B

Thosé,a gentlemen and ladies, are my thoughts on the
whole idea. Let me assure you that everyone at Princeton is
~working very, very diligently to prevent such events from ever’
reoccurring. This was an aberration. This type of thing does
ﬁbt happen often. It was as if all the planets in our solar
system lined up, and tipped the solar system.

I would like to dismiss the idea of any positive
benefits being served by the arrest of our undergraduate
officers.' Such arrests would be unethical. As stated by
several others, the whole system 1is flawed. These officers
were merely continuing traditions which had previously been
immune to prosecution by the police and by the university.
Surely the police know about the drinking. The arrests are
merely bureaucratic reactions to the heat produced by the
negative media publicity. Even the ABC -- and I brought some
journals for your perusal -- knew that:- underage drinking was
occurring. In a Daily Princetonian, our éampus newspaper,

“"Alcohol Control Hits the Campus." Five years ago, the ABC,
after a front-page story in The Trentonian, started clamping

down on alcohol at Princeton. When the heat receded, they
stopped coming to the campus.
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If these students are convicted, should not the Police
Department ::.and ..the:  ABC . also :be: guilty ‘of:.:negligence, ‘and
therefore: aiding.zand abetting the crime? The university is
also seekingfterdistancezitselfrfrbmmxhewcluBShandhthe*bfficérs
who are::being:-prosecuted. .. But. if the. courts. of New- Jersey
believe the  clubs are an integral part of 'Princeton, then
should not the university also be somewhat responsible for the
actions at those clubs? Indeed, they~seemed informed of the
events and the dangers they provided to the students when they
proéured the vans to transport the students. This selective
prosecution, gentlemen and ladies, is wrong, and it is
unproductive.

The university, though, is not alone in its attitude
toward the clubs. Recent statistics released by the Center for
the Study of College Fraternities stated that in '83, 15% of
the universities had total control over social clubs. In '8¢,
32% had total -control over the social clubs. But yet,
conversely, in '83, 2% of the colleges in the nation's clubs
were totally independent. By '86, 34% had risen to total
independence.  College administrators are either = removing
themselves from club problems, or taking over the clubs and
‘removing the problems in them.

At Princeton, the university, along with many of the
Princeton community, wish to keep the clubs autonomous. There
are many who wish they were a greater part of the university.
This is the problem inherent at their university,

How do we solve this problem, gentlemen and ladies?
Requiring proof of age for a drink is fruitless. New York City
is only.a train ride away from Princeton, and a very believable
fake I.D. is readily available. The very computer that typed
this speech can make a counterfeit I.D. in under an hour; that
is the university computer system, and any MacIntosh that a
12-year-o0ld has in his room at home.
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One possible way that the Legislature might act to
solve  this problem; .is. how .other legislatures  have: done it
a‘roundr..,the;co.untry..i.; It -would be to outlaw...the. ritualistic
initiation;:;the ‘hazing.: ThelNew-Jersey State Tiegislature.:may
wish ‘to enact: some :.laws'.of :‘this ‘nature...:The -State of New
Jersey recognizes that any club which provides integral service
to a college or university, be it social or a boarding service,
is part of the university, and the university, therefore, is
responsible for these clubs. That would force the university
" to step in.

The whole problem may be solved by our dear friends at
the liability insurance companies. The high cost of liability
“insurance may force the 'clubs out of the alcohol business, and
force them into the arms of the university. o

One.problem, as previously stated, is, if we do remove
alcohol from the universities, the students will seek to find
another outlet. This will be done by travel. That opens up a
whole new broad problem with drunk driving, etc., when they
have to get back to campus after their fun. » -

The best possible way to remove the problém, I
believe, 1is through education. At Princeton, we are moving
forward in that manner. The second aspect is a voluntary
removal of any hard liquor from the clubs themselves, along
with the removal of any ritualistic drinking that goes along
with the initiation process.

| | Finally —— and I think this is both the most important
and the most difficult -- 1is the preservation of the horror
which occurred that February 6, the horror of the coma and the
death in New Jersey caused by the ifresponsible use of alcohol,
to the forthcoming generations of undergraduates. Two years
ago, a student fell off a roof at Princeton. There is a whole
new generation that never knew him ~- never knew about him. We
have to find ways to let them know what happened.
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Princeton, . my friends, is a very, very old
institution. It is:very slow to change. It didn't even become
coed until-  1969.::Princeton's -house has not been:in .order. It
has not:adapted tu.cthe .sodietyi:around--it,-ras~-thatrisoctety has
been transformed:.::It :takes:events like: those~ that>-happened on
February 6. to: make.Princeton move. :~They provide the impetus.
Princeton is now getting its house in order. It will take
time. With the initiative and desire of the students,
administrators, faculty, and government, I believe that
Princeton will put its house in order.

Gentlemen, I would be happy to answer any questions,
but before I do so, I would like to introduce Mr. Scott Conover.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: The Chairman will take care of

that.

MR. WINTER: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What year ~are you in at
Princeton?

MR. WINTER: I am a junior, sir.
_ . ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And - you are a member of the
'Charter Club? o | o '
' MR. WINTER: Yes, sir. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I don't understand the
initiation process. Do you invite people to join your club at
Princeton? A
MR. WINTER: At Princeton, there are 13 eating clubs.
Eight of them are drawn by selective Ilottery. The students
utilize a choice. They make their top three choices. Those
choices are put through a computer system, drawn, and by
lottery system, hopefully, you will get your first choice of
club. If not, you go to your second, and then there 1is a
waiting list. v ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Who operates that lottery?
. MR. WINTER: In the past, it has been done by the
university computer system, by students. I am not sure--
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'~ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Princeton University computers?
.77 MR, WINTER: - The Inter-Club Council runs-:thatv:, = iomemn
7 vinr ASSEMBLYMAN:VILLANE:  Okay: rAreryou :an:officericat the
Charter Club? =d o The rooiary arcosd 1T 09 TAET shcieey BAT

_MR.. WINTER::: No,- I am not an  officer of- the:.:Charter
Club. I am just ‘a member. . - _

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That terrible night when
_everybody got drunk, did you invite freshmen, or new pledges?

MR. WINTER: The initiates are sophomores.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: How old are they?

MR. WINTER: They are probably 19 years old, most of
them -- 19 or 20 years old. _ ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And you had how many-- Like,
for instance, th many went to your Charter Club?

v MR. WINTER: I think there was an approximate class
size of 110 new people in the Charter Club. I did not go; I

went to the hockey game instead. I got there, and I entered as

the cast was reaching its climax, as I said.

N ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Does your Charter Club have a
liquor license? . o “ |

MR. WINTER: No, it doesn't. _

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: In your experience at Princeton,
has anyone told you what the penalties are in the State of New
Jersey for serving a minor?

MR. WINTER: As a resident of New Jersey, I understood
it was a felony; or a misdemeanor. I am not sure. I knew it
was 1illegal, of course. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Did anyone ever talk to you
since you have been at Princeton about hazing -- that that is a
crime in the State of New Jersey?

MR. WINTER: Yes, I did hear that it was a crime.
Nobody has ever spoken to me at Princeton.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What is the penalty for that?
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MR. WINTER: I am not sure. This ‘is not a hazing
process, as with a:fraternity. v o ons oo '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Oh, I understand:: I just wanted
€5 khow @what’ they taught you at Princeton about it. Did they
presenting. false proof or for serving liquor to someone with
false proof? ,

'MR. WINTER: I know you lose your license. I remember
that from when I was a senior in high school. As I said, I am
not even 21 yet, and I am not a big drinker. I am not a
drinker.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It seems as though -— and
correct me-- I am very grateful for your help in this. We are
not involved in that case between Princeton and the young woman
who wants to be a member of a club. I know that is in the
courts. But it 1s very clear, it seems, that the university
knew about this party, and that the fraternity —- or the ciub,
_the eéting_club —— provided liquor to obviously known minors,
which is a crime in the State of New Jersey.

MR. WINTER: Absolutely. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And the university not only knew
about it, but provided vans to transport—-—

MR. WINTER: Yes, they did. They pfovided the vans
necessary to transport the students from the eating clubs to
- the university infirmary. ‘

» ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: In your three years' experience,
what has been the procedure when there is a problem at an
eating c¢lub? Who responds to the problem? Is it the local
police or the campus police? _ | ,

MR. WINTER: There has never been a problem during my
time at Princeton 1like what happened that night. It 1is not

usual. Princeton 1s not an excessively drunken campus.
Although there is plenty of alcohol around, people do not go
out—-— Most of the university students do not go out with the

premonition of just going out and getting drunk.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Where do the activities for the

' Charter Club-take place; like advertising for events?
MR. - WINTER: . ..In ..the .university - newspaper:.:rI.:have

severalr university mnewspapers whi¢h:-I-zwill »donate: to you :faor

your perusal: won aiwsn wchiar oho GSnaiiy Inm FWSe oo T T

‘ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: ® Thank you very much. Has there
been an active, organized attempt at your university to speak
“to the problem of underage drinking or hazing?

MR. WINTER: 'No, there hasn't. Yes, after the events
of that evening, there has been. The clubs, as I said, have
instituted 21 and over, basically in every club. Before then,
there wasn't. There was a sense of immunity from prosecution
by local officials .-—- prosecution by the police -- and the
university itself never really seemed to put a clamp on it.
They don't really wish to put a clamp on it.

One of the problems with the university is, if they
stop the social 1life at the clubs, they will restrict the
social 1life of the whole university, and there would probably
‘be problems in attracting students to the university because of
the lack of social life. The same students may go to Harvard,

Yale, or Stanford —- the bigger cities, the bigger schools —-=
where maybe these problems are not as significant.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you think the 1lack of
underage drinking -- if that were clamped down upon at
Princeton -- would eliminate the applicants to Princeton
University?

MR. WINTER: No, I don't believe it would eliminate
applicants. I think it would factor in, very much so-- A

college student, when he goes to a school, wants to know what
the social 1life is. It is a growing time, and social life—-—
Although at Princeton it is a minimal consideration, there is

that consideration.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I understand. If you will stay
there —— there may be some questions later from the rest of the




panel —— I would like to introduce your colleague, Scott—-— His
name “is Scott-Conowver? .t o s e

MR, WINTER: - Yes. il woiio =035l . SEWHDIGHD. P

=% ASSEMBLYMAN:VILLANE: 5 Scotti:Cdnover. Jousis ©o =i Sor

S COTT-CONGOVER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name

~1s Scott Conover. -I am the President of the Inter-Club Council

at Princeton University. I am also the President of one of the
clubs, the Campus Club, actually home of Governor Tom Kean,
Class of 1957. ‘

What I want to express to you today in some brief
comments, is that both the university community and
particularly the eating clubs and their graduate boards,
consider this to be a very, very serious situation. Both the
coma incident: of. February 5 and 6, and the death of Mr.
Callahan, are certainly not to be taken lightly whatsoever. '

‘There have been a significant number of graduate and
undergraduate board meetings regarding this. I think, as Bryan
pointed out, it is important to understand there is a very hazy
line of indepehdence for .these eating clubs, from the
university. -They_have' independent gradﬁate boards. They are
independently owned. They are, in many ways, not affiliated '
with the university, although they primarily serve the
university students for wundergraduate eating and social
facilities. _ |

The one thing I noticed in a lot of the comment so
far, particularly those from Ms. Stevens, 1is that education
really seems to lie at the heart of the matter. I understand
that as legislators, your concerns are primarily the law and
the upho‘lding of the law, and I can certainiy respect that.
But particularly with regard to incidents of Science Night, and
a lot of college hazing, much of it has to do with a certain
naivete of underage drinkers about how to drink, how much to

drink, what 1s right and what is wrong, when to say no, and how

to say no.

31




Princeton, just this year, has instituted an Alcohol
and Drug::Program,_:with a full-time paid counselor -at the
university-health:facility. He has instructed all of the clubs
— all ofsthes:eatingiclubs—— s:He:-has:met.with all of their
executiverofficer sboards; and will:. continie to: meet: with:-their
club bodies. He has-also- had meetings. with all of the sports
teams, or is in the process of meeting with all of the sports
teams. But, as Ms. Stevens said, alcohol -education and
mandated attendance at education sessions seem to be a very
positive direction to take this problem in. Certainly I agree
that hazing, as such, is intolerable. Princeton University --
the Inter-Club Council and the eating clubs at Princeton —- are
not going to tolerate that. Coercive drinking is something
that we have nevér been in favor of, and will continue not to
be in favor of. If it happens-- We want to take steps to see
that it doesn't happen again, but we are not in the business of
making mandatory alcohol consumption parﬁ of 'a membership
process, or an initiation process. |

- I think it is important, as well -- as Bryan mentioned
—— to limit the amount of hard alcohol. I think that is where
you find the majority of . the problems. As I understand it,
that is the best way to ingest the most amount of alcohol that
can do the most damage. | |

Since the incident, we have enacted stricter 21
drinking rules. All the clubs have been carded in their
taproom areas. There has been a general somber damper on the
social life at Princeton. But that is understandable, and is a
very small price to pay when death is the other option, and
excessive drinking. »

I would just say, again, we have taken a lot of steps
in the direction of education. I, personally, can't support

legal action against the five officers. I think it is
selective prosecution. In many respects, I am as guilty as

they are, for the crimes they are being charged with.
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Unfortunately, their numbers were simply greater, and they were
more publicized.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We are really not into that, who
is going to be prosecuted kind of thing. An interesting thing
that you commented on, is that we are interested in the laws
and the enforcement of the laws. That is reaily not the
Legislature's role. The Legislature's role is to identify
problems in the State of New Jersey, and to try to solve those
through laws. - So, we are not really into enforcingvthe laws.
I am sure the proéecutors are going to do that.

I wanted to ask you, are you a senior?

MR. CONOVER: I am a junior.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Have you ever attended a
counseling session that spoke to the problems of alcohol abuse
or hazing? -

MR. CONOVER: Yes, as a matter of fact, I have. As I
said, just. this year—— | : |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: But, I mean, prior to this
incident? .
‘ 'MR. CONOVER: Prior to this, no. No.
| ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: There has been a policy, you
know, implemented at Princeton for a number of years about the
alcohol and hazing, but it has never really been developed with
freshmen, sophomores, or juniors.

MR. CONOVER: But, as I said, prior to this incident,
no. After this incident, this is certainly a high agenda item
for the administration and the faculty.

' ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You tell me that none of the
houses have liquor licenses. Is that correct?

MR. CONOVER: No, when the 1liquor 1laws were changed,
and the age was raised, all the clubs voluntarily gave up their
proper liquor licenses.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Now, under what jurisdiction do
they buy and serve alcohol in a club?
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. MR. CONOVER: I believe it is under the host laws of
the State of -New Jersey.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is' the aleohol:provided. free to
- the -members, or are:they:charged? . =% .7 Tr TsmtorIgting Tning
. . .. 'MR. CONOVER:: - There:are pending legal:issues:that [.am
not allowed to comment on at this time, regarding that question:
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Okay. I can understand that.
Do you know what the law is in the State of New Jersey about
providing alcohol to a minor? Are you familiar with that?
'MR. CONOVER: No; I'm not, although I am familiar with
the hazing law, but not the penalties. i
- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It leaves us in kind of a
quandary to unde;stand how freestanding, independent clubs,
like the clubs aré purported to be, can buy and serve, or sell
élcohol to minors in the State of New Jersey, and yet there
doesn't seem to be any responsibility on the part of the
university, which is quite aware of the whole situation.
i MR. WINTER: Mr. Chairman, if I may--
- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Winter. .
MR. WINTER: As I stated before, that bothers me also
about the wuniversity, but it also bothers me that the
enforcement agencies the State has have seemed to let it slip
by, and also the local borough police.
' ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That's important.
MR. WINTER: I think that is a key point.
7 ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Shusted?
ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: No.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Ms. Farragher?
ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: No.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, both of
you, for your testimony.
I would 1like to now hear from Mr. Michael Rodak, a
student trustee at Montclair State College. Michael, I see you
have some written testimony. Perhaps if you could summarize
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that, it would be better than reading the six or seven pages.
I would appreciate it.-

MICHAEL--R-ODARK:. Okay.: I'will try to do my best.:
tn: mzmoiBirstrofralliecl cameshere today as a student, as well
as havingwthegdistincturele;oﬁ being:a student:ztrustée:'att my
college. --Therefore, 1 can: see' the problems -from beoth .angles,
being involved administratively, as well as being a student and
seeing what my fellow students see each and every day. What I
come here today to try to do is to talk about the drinking on
campus, not really to address the hazing problem or the
fraternity/sorority situation -— just the drinking on campus.

I think, coming here as a student, looking at the
whole dynamic picture of this, there are problems that are very
inherent to the colléges. - Students, when they come to college
-- by the time they get to college as freshmen -— have already
had a drink. Some have already gotten drunk. Some of these
students have even had a drink at 10 or 12 years of age. We
find that being wasted was not something unique. Coming to
coilege; they have done it before. What I am trying to point
out is, when they get to college, they inherently feel they can
go ahead and drink. They see that they have been able to do it.
' Sometimes children -- students, I should say -- come
from families where the parents are alcoholics, or who have had
alcoholism in their family. Sometimes it is not taught to them
that alcoholism is bad. When parents go away, for example,
sometimes there are big parties that go on in that high school
house —-— the home of the student whose parents are away. They
see that for years drink has been associated with fun. Some
students believe they must drink, or get drunk, to enjoy a
~ party. A side problem is their belief in the way 1in which
advertisers are encouraging the students to drink. Today we
see that Spuds MacKenzie, "the party animal," 1is a dynamic
figure in our lives. Students like to believe in that type of
attitude, unfortunately. We see this also with wine coolers.
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Now, after addressing the- problems before the time you
get to college; TI:would like to just look at the problems right
on ' campus.:" :The =problems- of:: drinkirig‘ ‘on* campus‘®-'vary' at: .each
individuaI-campus’, but. I:will—try:to encompass. mostzof-them. -::

- . _ASSEMBLYMAN :V¥ILLANE: . Why don't-:you, . 1if - -you would,
talk about Montclair in particular? I mean, that is where you
go to school, right? We don't need an overview of, you know,
home 1life or high school drinking. We have kind of gotten a
lot of information. '

MR. RODAK: Well, Doctor, the reason why I brought
that up is because——

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I understand.

MR. RODAK: --this 1s an  inherited problem. I'm
saying that by the time students get to college, they have
already had a drink. Some have already gotten wasted —— gotten
drunk. .

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ VILLANE: You have gone over that
already. If you would talk specifically about alcohol ——
excessive drinking at Montclair, or hézing, that would be very
" helpful to our Committee. ' o S

MR. RODAK: Okay. As fas as my college is concerned,
I believe we are enforcing the rules. But I must add that I am
not naive enough to believe that drinking is not occurring on
campus; that it is not being sneaked into the dorms. 1In fact,

I have had cases where students have come and told me of it.
‘Unfortunately, I don't know those names individually, so I
could possibly talk to them and ask them to report it to the
proper authorities, and proper action could be taken.

We have one set of apartments -- the Clove Road
Apartments —— on our campus. There, drinking is allowed. That
is because the students who are in those dorms are above 21,
the 1legal drinking age. That 1is the only place it 1is
supposedly allowed. We also allow only a certain amount of
students to attend parties there. The number is 30.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is that strictly enforced -- the

number of people allowed at a party?- ' R I S

. MR, RODAKL;;uYes, it .'is. enforced,:  because  the-names
have-to:bé given:intadvance. . But I-musto-says,s sometimes ‘you may
get over theamount: of:30::-1 remémber:one octcasion where-there
were 100 students who attended  a - party at - one . of . the
apartments, but the authorities were called in at that time.
It was the campus police who were called in.

Otherwise on campus-— When the students arrive on
campus, we try to explain that there are rules about dtinking
on campus; that drinking is not allowed. 1If you notice, I have
handed each of the members of the Committee one of our -- in
fact, it just came out yesterday -- campus newspapers. This
past week, we have had Drinking Awareness Week. You can see by
the photo that we had a car displayed from a pefson who was
drinking. The car was smashed up, and we placed it right near
the dormitories. By the way, this was done by RAs. Today,
there has been different téstimony saying that RAs have been
allowing this to occur, but the RAs were responsible for this
eduﬁationaliaWareness week on alcoholism. So I give the RAs at
my college a lot of credit. , »

As I mentioned in my testimony, there are also a few
out there who definitely are making mistakes, and are allowing
the drinking to go on in the dormitories. That 1is what 1is
serious. What can we do? I mean, if we do not Kknow, say,
administratively, that there 1is an actual problem going on in
the dorm and it is not being reported to us, we can't just walk
in there. | - y
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Have you been to any parties
where underage students drank?

MR. RODAK: 'No. Well, I'll say this: We have a
campus pub, and on Thursday evenings we allow drinking on
campus. A student has to have two forms of I.D. to get in.
But I must say, of the students who are in that pub,‘I would
say that half of them are below the legal drinking age.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I've heard that.
. :MR.:~RODAK: :-The simple-reason for that is that they
have fake*I.D.s,_which is. a serious matter:-in itself.: i P
.. 'ASSEMBLYMAN ~-¥IELANE: ":-Does:your:+vcollege nprovide - a
collegeaﬂ.fhﬁwwith:thefagé ON TAL2-rir nmm Soe L ., wlimee Shoes
- ~ MR. RODAK:" Right..: When they come-— For example, say
I am sitting ‘there at a desk and a student comes up, he has to
show me I.D. and a license. But, as I said, most of the time

-— well, I should say half of the time -- they are either
altered in some way, or the person signing in has altered
documents, as well. That 1is what 1is serious. We cannot
regulate it. What we're doing is regulating, and saying,

“Okay, you did show us the two I.D.s. Yes, you did say you
were over 21." We have done our part, but how can we enforce
it and say, "Well, you're not over 21"? .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Let me make a suggestion to
you. I am familiar with your college. They hosted a méeting
of the Appropriations Committee several weeks ago.

MR. RODAK: Yes. - |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: When we were there, I spoke
about the problem. There was no problem, obviously, until I
read your school newspaper. Then I read that your pub was
going to be closed because of some problems.

MR. RODAK: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I also spoke to your pub
manager. You know, some colleges provide a student I.D. that
indicates the age of the student. I don't remember the name of
the college, but your school does not do that.

MR. RODAK: No, it does not.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Actually, there is a way to make
a card that 'provides an I.D. that indicates the age of the
student, that cannot be modified. It is done with electrical
magnetic tape. I would recommend that-— There are going to be
a number of recommendations come out, but that is one that
Montclair could start with, probably.
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MR. RODAK: Well, one time we caught it. For example,
one time ‘a student used the same“photo == I should ‘say, :the
same name =-- but .when. we got:the:identifications:back from the
company that:makes them up, we found-thgtzthe;samerphoto“waSeon
two different I.D.s, and we were able to catch it at that time.

Regarding the incident you referred_  to. in . the
newspaper, that was an incident that occurred outside of the
pub, after it was closed, at approximately 1:30 in the evening.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I don't mean to be critical of
your college.

MR. RODAK: No, but it did not occur inside the pub. -

I just wanted to differentiate that. |
T ASSEMBLYMAN. VILLANE: I want to move along. If you
‘want to stay there at the witness table, you may, but slide
over and let another student come up -— Mr. Russ Olwell, from
Princeton University. : _
R U s 8§ O L WEUL L: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and
members of the ASsembly.' I am very happy you invited me here,
because I think that most college students don't have é_very
good idea‘of.how much government wants their'input into your
decisions.

I threw away my prepared speech, because I think the
two other guys who werelup here from Princeton really did a
good job explaining the eating clubs and stuff.

I am a freshman. I am just here as a concerned
person. I am a news reporter on the campus. I cover alcohol
issues, along with one other reporter. Just from covering

these issues, I am very concerned about them, and I thought I
should be here to provide a voice independent of the eating

clubs. .
I just want to go down a list of a few topics. The

RAs have a very tough job. They become pariahs to their
friends who are upperclassmen, and are forced into this
"freshperson" environment which involves, in many cases, a lot
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of drinking. It is a very tough job. If they are expected to
be the friends: : +—iyou- know; :your RA:.is going ta- be your: buddy;
that is the way:it:is going to be: set up —-- these things. are
going~torrhappenss Probably,wif :they tare going:to be.:used:far
enforcement; -the: job ~is going :toi-have: to: be :changed-a :great
deal. CLnd L Ll T ‘

I think a member of the delegation from Princeton
mentioned that half of Charter are good drinkers, because they
are athletes and they drink a lot. It implies something, that
drinking should be like athletic competition. You should train
at it, and that you should get much better so that you can
drink more. I mean, really, there has been a lot of argument
in the pages of the school newspaper about how, "You see,
students don't get to drink enough. That is why they have
trouble on the few occasions that they do drink." -

I see no reason why someone can't go to a party and
just, you know, have a few drinks. But all of this pushing.
your limit-— 1It's all well and good, but it leads to tragedy.
People should be told this. We shouldn't let people come to
the Assembly and just 'say;b "Well, ~they should all be good
drinkers." _ . ‘

Two years'ago, there was a freshman who fell off the

roof of a building; he was drunk. They mentioned it in
passing. Before that ——- there was an alcohol reporter on the
staff before I was -- there was no university support for
alcohol programs. There was absolutely nothing; no one did

anything. It wasn't realized that there was a problem. I must
say, the university has hired a counselor, and has made it a
priority, and has really tried its best, through education, to
work with it.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Olwell, when you came in as
a freshman, prior to this incident, were you given any advice
about alcohol abuse or hazing? Was there any indoctrination or
statement of policy on behalf of the university?
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MR. OLWELL: Yeah. We got a letter over the summer,
and we ‘got;~:you know, : the:..usual. list - of rules. I idon't
remember hazing. being mentioned;, but drinking was:mentioned. ...
ot T .o ASSEMBLYMAN -VILLANE: - rAre-:you:.:‘a -memberr-of--an::eating
club now?un. Toe i s GntTmT T b e men Thoanas o L

MR. OLWELL: No. - Freshmen and sophomores are not
members of eating clubs.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Freshmen and sophomores do not
belong to eating clubs? Only juniors and seniors?

MR. OLWELL: Right. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I thought an earlier colleague
of yours stated that they provide up to 75% of the meals on
campus. i y | ' ‘

MR. OLWELL:A Ninety percent of upperclass meals.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Ninety  percent of the
upperclass. So, freshmen and sophomores eat in the cafeteria?

MR. OLWELL: well, .they are called -"residential
colleges." It is a setup designed to provide support services
for freshmen and sophomores. It is mostly designed for ease
of, yau know, really getting to them, educating them, ‘and
trying to guide them and give them someone to come to. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Besides the eating clubs at
Princeton, 1like some of the other colleges, do they have
dormitory parties, or resident hall parties?

MR. OLWELL: Occasionally, not very much. The eating
clubs are very much the center of--

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You have no place to go, though,
if you are a freshman or a sophomore?

MR. OLWELL: Well, you can pick up passes at the club
' to go to a party at the club.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Pick up passes at the eating
clubs to go to a party?

MR. OLWELL: Yes. During the day, if you want to go,
you go in and ask the social chairman, you know, "Hi, may I
have a pass?" If you know him, you will probably get one.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: So, as a freshman or a
sophomore,~'you:-can ‘go- to an' eating club, even though you are
nat a member?2::j TEimy fclonoeea, DoU SEURIE LD WL TNl e

MR/ OLWELL:#: Rights;:yeah.. .. = pmmraer Y nn ol

... ’ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Can you get drinks there if you
want them? S
MR. OLWELL: Well, you see, I don't really go to them,

so—— Also, there are legal issues involved, and-- Do I have

to answer the question?

ASSEMBLYMAN  VILLANE: No, you don't have to.

(laughter) I think you have answered it. You Kknow, when I
tell you I really appreciate everyone's testimony-— It is a
vvery serious subject to all of us, even though some of us do
giggle once in a while. It is a strange phenomenon when a
practice is so common in the State of New Jersey that people
say, "There's nothing we can do about it." I think there is
something that should be done about it.
_ It was reported in a local newspaper Jjust yesterday,
that branding 1is a very ‘common occurrence on the college
campuses of the State of New Jersey. They said there is just
absolutely nothing you can do aboutbbranding other Human beings
in this State, because that is the way it is. Now, if that is
the way it is, there's something wrong.

MR. OLWELL: May I continue?

'ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I'm sorry, go ahead.

MR. OLWELL: Okay. I think the State Legislature
should work as hard as possible in making coercive drinking a
crime, whether it is physical or psychological, because I think
when the game is "Let's Make a Deal," and there are 12 rooms
and people are jumping out and giving you drinks-— I think
that 1s a bad atmosphere to hold a party in. I think it is
just, over and over, asking people to drink. I think, really,
that that is part of the problem, because for every drink that
gets poured down someone's throat, there are probably 50 that
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are just being handed to them. - There are clubs, honestly,
where .club officers have stood up on a tablefand“said,w”Don't
drink anything. Don't feel that there 1is any peer pressure
here. We:donlt..want tq:dauanything—— Even if it looks like it
is peer pressure,!it's’ not.:i.Just- have -a:good-time." -~ And :there:
are clubs that hand you drinks. I think you have to realize
that there is a tremendous amount of diversity in the eating
clubs. |

I think maybe the State should work toward requiring
that "at fraternity and eating club parties there be
nonalcoholic beverages alongside the alcoholic beverages in
equal quantities, such that something is always available.
When you go to a party and they are just serving alcohol, it is
basically telling nonerinkers that they do not belong there.

I think the clubs —— either in 1982 or 1983, when the
drinking age was changed -- gave up their club licenses. They
didn't give up-— I don't know if that is a liquor license.

There is a distinction there. That is just something ‘I came
across. . o , v _ . _
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: In the State of New Jersey,
there are different types of licenses. One of the types of
licenses is a club license. We are going to be looking into
that when we talk to the ABC and other officials.

MR. OLWELL: I really hope they are required to have a
license, because I feel that having a license 1s the most
convenient way to punish those institutions'that simply cannot
handle having alcohol around. ' 4

The university does provide-- 1If there is a problem
at an eating club and a student has to go to the infirmary of
the university, he can, and is sort of encouraged to call the
proctors of the university to just take him there. I don't
consider that bad. I think the university is really trying to
get away from the idea of, "Well, he's drunk. Leave him on the
floor, he'll sleep it off. Oh, wéll, he's not moving—-'

1

(said
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with a shrug, expressing disinterest) You know,. they are kind
of moving:toward: getting people’ into-care as soon ds possible.
~rAnyway, thank:you: for having me :here. I:hope: E:-have

been .of ssome:use “toryou. Z:I invite .you all:—=7if: y’ou’.eve’x‘i:; ‘want
to ==-to-:come - up to the 'university..to -find.out what a college
student's life is all about, and all that other -great stuff
that you guys get to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Mr.
. Olwell. Some of us have been through college. (laughter) Are
there any quéstions? Ms. Farragher? .

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Michael (speaking to Mr. Rodak), I would like to thank you very

much for bringing us: this issue of The Montclarian. I think
the issue abs‘olutely', completely highlights the problem, in
particular with relation to drinking. .

I see two problems here. Hazing is one issue; alcohol
another issue. I, for one, do not expect that the colleges in
the State of New Jersey are going to solve the perception of
alcohol. That 1is something we have to work on as a State and .
as a nation. It is not a local problem. It is not restricted
to colleges. I-think the efforts of the school -—- displaying
the car that was involved in an accident where there were
deaths; it was a drirking-related accident -- are absolutely
outstanding; marvelous.

Then I turned to page 2. On page 2 —-- and this is
what I am talking about; it is not the college perception, it's
a national perception -- "Gradﬁating seniors have the time of
your life on May 12 at the Senior Bash, Meadowlands Hilton."
Going down here (holding up newspaper), the first item
mentioned is a five-hour open bar. I think, you know, that
tie-in, at this time in your life-- The first item mentioned
isn't the music or the food; it is the five-hour open bar.
This is sponsored by the student government. But, it is not
the student government's fault. That 1is the advertising they
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have to use to attract people. Okay? I want to thank you for
bringingm-that4;here;“ﬂbecause;,I;?thinkf=thatw;underscoresw'the
- problem very.much. :izos swou o0 oo Thuomm hoon. R

o on JThank you,:Mro:Chairmanmicy won alt —- 1t wvou svor wans
== - +oMRv-- RODAK:«: :Assemblywoman, -:ifli:Ii may - -just: address
that. The reason I came here, “in part --— the main reason -—-
was to explain some of the various reasons I feel that during
the past few months -- I should say really the past couple of
. months —-—- since Mr. Callahan's death, dnfortunately, colleges
have been getting the brunt of the criticism. Although we are,
and should be criticized, we inherited a lot of problems. A
lot of these students have already gotten drunk, and they sée
these advertisements,.  "Let's get drunk. Let's have a good
time. Let's "party. This is the only way we can have fun.
This is the only time we can meet people." That is what is
sad. This is why I'm saying the main reason I came here today,
is because I feel that students in colleges, and the colleges
themselves, have received an unfair amount of attention from
the press, really from a lot of people, saying, "All the

colleges are wrong." It is not all our fault. It is not the
students' fault either. This 1is what 1is inherited, Jjust
because it's something that 1is fun. It should be done; you

should go out there and have a party, and have a blast. It is
really a perception that 1s given from the time the students
are in the seventh and eighth grades of grammar school.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Yes, Michael, that is what I
said.

MR. RODAK: ©No, I know. I just wanted to get the
reason—— »

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: - I understand. Michael,
before you were born, I was in college. At that time, there
was no drinking on our campus, but there were campus hangouts
and everybody went to them. Of course, we didn't have the same
question. The 'drinking age was 18. 1, personally, have
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serious concerns where we have pubs on campuses where many of
the students:are.below-21. I don't-:think they belong. there.
That is my:personal feeling. That's longstanding.

I'nakso---believe:: ‘that:.somewhere we have to start
educatingseur young: peoplerthat-being able™to:-holdi your -liguor:
is no measure of. manliness or womanliness or- intelligence or
ability. It is a matter of chemistry. For some people, when
they get to college and they get into the drinking —— if they
.haven't gotten into it before already in high school, and many
of them have-- Many of them have. Believe me, I know. I can
tell you that sometimes you will get a very bright, capable
person who will fall into particular habits. Maybe he has a
latent problem, and now he has a real one. How many dropouts
are there? I mean, thére must be many, many dropouts, students
who drop out because they get into alcohol abuse, or drug
abuse, which is another issue —— but alcohol because it is more
easily available ---and they aren't able to study. They wind
up dropping out, and we have wasted lives there. )

So, I see this as a very serious problem for the State
of New Jersey. I consider the students and the colleges in the
State of New Jersey to be the brightest and the best. They are
the fortunate. They have opportunities offered to them that
are not offered to many people, who would love to have them,
and in many cases, they are thrown away because of our -- and I
say our as a State, as a nation —— attitudes toward drinking.
I think it is an absolute shame.

MR. RODAK:  Thank you very much, Assemblywoman.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Okay. Thank you very much,
gentlemen. Are there any other students in the audience who
wish to testify? (affirmative response) Will you come forward
and give your name, please?

JONATHAN DONAHUE: My name is Jonathan Donahue.
i am the current President of Chi Psi Fraternity at Rutgers.
To my right 1is Moly Hung. He 1is my predecessor. I have

46




only been in._office for. three weeks, .and _I. would like him to
make comments at-this time, in'my place. -

M OLY H:U:N:G:: I-believe.a_lot of:the :issues were brought
up by the - Princeton::contingent, . as -well :as..m the ather
individuals who-have come up.: At-this time, I would basically
like to field “questionS' from the Committee pertaining to
anything in particular about State institutions such as Rutgers.

" In many ways, I feel that Rutgers differs from
Princeton, because one of the fellows from Princeton said
something about the eating clubs and their role at Princeton
University being—— He tried to delineate the line. I want to
say that Rutgers is almost like a microcosm of society, because
it is a State institution. It has many kids from different
towns, different socioeconomic classes, different ethnic
backgrounds. So, in many ways, when individuals go into
fraternities and sororities, the fraternities and sororities
are also microcosms of the State, as well as the university.
In many instances, they reflect the current social mores that
are of soc1ety, as well as the university.
| Though it may not be dictated, per se, stralght to the'
university, the biggest thing, I think, in terms of my
perception and being put in a precarious situation as an
officer for the past year for Chi ©Psi Fraternity, and
understanding the ramifications of serving liquor to minors —-
and believe me, I have been put in that situation many times,
in terms of host 1liability for ‘minors cdming in, say, and
getting by our policy-- I might add, Rutgers has 'a pretty
stringent party policy. 'In the case of Mr. Callahan, that was
more of a pinning ceremony occasion. In terms of party
policies at Rutgers, as well as at Chi Psi Fraternity, we card
people. We basically approach the whole social scene and
letting people into our fraternity houses with the same idea
and actions that others do, by carding people and requiring
than to have Rutgers University I.D.s. The reasoning behind
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that is that we really don't want townies or outsiders coming
in. . It ds - very :'difficult, ~if-'you. are from a visiting
university, . to: even: sometimes: get into:.::a :party -at: Chi . Psi
Fraternityzcper secaton  annoingent, % weii o &S thi  otnor

1. 1i. 80, »We doschavezpolticies, rand wesdo hawve:.people -and
staff who support us at Rutgers in :our endeavors to try .to keep
things under control. However, what I personally feel is

lacking is the enforcement. That 1is not saying enforcement

through the law, -but enforcement within the academic community

itself. The reason enforcement is tough-- 1It's just 1like, as
a fraternity president, or even as an RA, or even as somebody
in administrétionq it is difficult to put your foot down on
your friends. It ‘isf difficult to say, "Hey, listen, I am
taking this away from YOu." Although brotherhood or sisterhood
is stressed, you know, it is a really tough line. 1It's like,

- say, you're at a party and you know you are responsible as the

president of your organization, or you are responsible as the

'RA, to tell people-— It is difficult to say, "Hey, ‘listen, I

am going to go into your individual rights." 1In many cases, it
may be, for minors, illegal for them to drink, but it's tough.

It's just very tough, because what is on paper and what is in
actual implementation, between peers, between individuals, goeés

beyond what is trying to be legislated or interpreted through
paper.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Are you talking about
enforcement within the fréternity itself?

MR. HUNG: No, not within the fraternity itself, but
within the governing bodies which oversee the fraternities,
such as the dean of fraternity/sorority affairs, or the Rutgers
Fraternity Council, or even the organization which governs the

sororities.
One of the things that really bothers me -- which I
would like to clear up -- in terms of initiations-- They have

gotten a lot of press, and believe me, you can get a lot of 1ink
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by writing about initiations, because they are something, to
many organizations =— _whether they :be eating clubs,. sports
clubs, :or- fraternities :andi'sororities: especially.- —=+ that are
veryﬂsacredwgnd:secret; At times, to divulge such secrecy and
use it, in a ‘sense, ‘as:Ms..Stevens :has ~done;, really-disturbs
. me, because: at-our particular fraternity, our -initiations are
sacred, and they are conducted in a manner such that a college
or university president could go through it with dignity. To
mix the two really just disturbs me.

I wanted to clarify that, because if 1legislation
should go all the way to say, "We are going to ban any type of
rights of initiation," that would.really take away a lot, in
terms —— from my personal experience being in a fraternity, as
well as my personal rélationship to a college. I really hope
the Committee will focus on the types of initiation, because
it seems 1like that term 1is being thrown around a 1lot, and
differentiate the types which are very ceremonial and veryk
sacrosanct, as opposed to those which really have no place
within the college academic environment. o

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We can assure you that we are
quite aware of that. The haZing law specifically addresses the
~issue of endangering someone. ’ | '

MR. HUNG: Right; okay. I understand—-

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: But the ritualistic initiations
are not of that type, I'm sure.

MR. HUNG: Okay. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: For our benefit, we didn't get
your name exactly.

MR. HUNG: My first name is Moly, that's M-O-L-Y; last
name Hung, H-U-N-G. I am the former president of Chi Psi
Fraternity at Rutgérs University, as well as the former
treasurer, '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Good.
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MR. HUNG: So I have been pretty involved in the
officer ‘role.: :I*kl tell-iyou,. I ‘have ‘gained ia  lot .of. nervaus
anxiety -at timesy:7or . gray hairs,. when .overseeing functions
where there could.:be:problems::~I. am speaking -specifically -in
terms of parties:~:One of ‘the reasons why people get .elected to
- the 'positionn- of president .or .-treasurer, positions- of
responsibility, 1is because they are responsible people. The
fraternity members, or sorority members, see that these people
can carry things out, to the best of their ability, and at the
same time compromise what could occur in terms of understanding
the ramifications. They pick people who, in essence, can bear
- that brunt of respohsibility. It puts you in a precarious
situation. :

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Hung, what year are you in
now? _

MR. HUNG: I am a senior.

 ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You're a senior.

MR. HUNG: I will be graduating this May.

, ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Prior to the problems at Rutgers
and Princeton, had you been a participant in a course where
they talked to you about the dangers of alcohol abuse and/or‘
hazing? _ ‘ '

MR. HUNG: I was fortunate to come from a strong high
school up in North Jersey, which implemented an alcohol type
program within their health education. So I was well-versed in
the effects of alcohol, and the ABC. a

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That is not what I asked you,
Mr. Hung. '

MR. HUNG: Okay, yes, I have. As a matter of fact, my
own fraternity did an in-fraternity program on alcohol abuse
and the effects of alcohol.

~ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: When was that?
MR. HUNG: This was just recently -- earlier in March.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: But, prior to that, in your four
years .at-cRutgers, : had you .participated. . in --any.. educational
programs .about::alcohol abuse: or._hazing. in the.. State . 0f . New
Jersey?Xiiere Colil DO SICDluUmI. I 2m ETUIELINT SLec.oniCailiv oan

7 MR: LHUNG: «:Pormally participate im-anythingszimttérms
-0of alcohol,. no. ' Formally  participate. in-anything in terms of
hazing, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Mr. Hung. Are there
any questions from the-panel?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Mr. Chairman, one question.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Assemblyman Spadoro?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: With respect to the training
regarding alcohol, did you say  the whole fraternity
participated iIn that prdgram?

MR. HUNG: Yes.

» ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Who actually administered the
program? o v

, MR. HUNG: We did, under our own program. We have a
thing called "Academic Forum," and we try to bring things in
that will be of interest. ‘At the time, because of extenuating
circumstances, we felt that maybe an alcohol seminar would be '
beneficial. It was conducted by another student from the
university, who had information and literature pertaining to
that problem. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We are going to find out as we
go along today, that the national fraternities and the
fraternity councils have programs about alcohol, about drug
abuse, aﬁd whatever. There are some very strong programs at
the national chapter level where they advise their councils.

. MR. HUNG: Yes. If I may add, Mr. Chairman-- You
asked me in terms of formal programs for alcohol with Rutgers
University. I had answered no, but in terms of my own national
fraternity, yes. Yes, I have been to programs.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Was it after the accident this
program was .done? - . i v e T B T
“rams MR HUNGI:-cYeah It was going~to::be: implemented; and
then the accident occurred, so it was kind of simultaneous.
ASSEMBLYMAN - SPADORO: .::In:' previous .years;: did .  the

fraternity always have an alcohol program?

MR. HUNG: See, that is difficult for me to answer,
because I am very, very sensitive to the 1issues of alcohol,
issues of 1legal ramifications, and issues of hazing, so for
me-—— I feel pretty well-versed on the effects of alcohol.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: No, I'm saying you were in the
fraternity in previous years.

MR. HUNG: Yes.: _ _

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Do you recall there being any
program in those previous years? '

MR. HUNG: Yes, I do recall that, although it is,fuzzy.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Okay. One last question: Was
it mandatory for all fraternity brothers to attend the session,
or was it a voluntary program? ' -

' MR. HUNG: It was voluntary.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much,
Assemblyman. If there are no other questions, we are going to
move on to the next person who wants to testify. I would like
to hear from Mr. Howard Alter, National Inter-Fraternity

Conference. Mr. Alter?

Are there any other students here from any other

colleges in New Jersey, who would 1like to testify? If you will

just give our Committee Aide your name, we will get to you.
Did you want to testify? (speaking to unidentified person, and
receiving an affirmative response) You did? We would 1like to
hear from the students, if at all possible.

Mr. Alter, go ahead, please.
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HOWARD ALTER: Dr. Villane, when you started today,
you said-that policies are about as good as the paper they are
written . ron. =um:We ¢all. have:: such:z fine: polieciesa:_. The
implementation ~of themris the important.thing:that:rhas:to be
brought into effect. =Is think i€.iscironics that'probably the
fraternity that. has."the finest set -of-statements, the finest
set of rules, and the finest counseling in alcohol, hazing, and
their problems, is the one which has brought to a focus today
the problems at Rutgers. No one has done the work they have;
no one has put the research into it; no one has put the money
into it that they have, to have it available to all of their
éhapters. It is a case of, we have made young men and young
women adults at the age of 18, but we haven't realized yet that
they are not drown up at that point, and that they-have to have
. guidance, and that we have to do something about it.
It was the late Justice Clark, when he was President
_ of Delta Tau Delta, who said, "Fraternities are" -- as our
young man from Rutgers said == "a microcosm of society." I
think we have to look at the fact that this isn't a problem
bjUSt ‘on our coliege campuses. It is a problem of ‘SOCietY
today. We'are facing this because these are people for whom we
are responsible, but it is a bigger problem than that. Go to
any bar on any side street in Trenton on a Friday or Saturday
night, and see how many police cars have to be lined up outside.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I would just make the point that
we are not providing a billion dollars out of the State budget
to subsidize the bars in Trenton. And I make another point
that we are assuming some role at the university for the young
people who are sent to 'us. So, you know, I have a little
problem with that kind of a simile. I don't think it exactly
fits.

MR. ALTER: I think a young man said that people come
already trained to drink. That is one of our big problems. We
have everything in place; all of the training programs are




there. We have to enforce them, and we have to find a way to
enforce - -them- with: the: administrations-of the schools, because
.where the school is attentive, the:-students.-are;in pretty good
shape::::Where: they: rave: zassumed.: thab"they ‘are mature-and.are
auton ‘their: own,'we.are‘haVJng'a_lot of ‘problems:: orobahily o

- -I really came: unprepared. to testify.:=I. only wanted to
come to listen today. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We appreciate your being here.
We really appreciate your testimony today. Are there any
questions? (no response) Thank you very much.

MR. ALTER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I would 1like to hear from Ms.

Karen Stanley, Seton .Hall University, President. of the
Inter-Sorority Council. | ‘
KAREN STANLEY: Hi. I didn't come prepared to
testify today either, but listening to what everyone else has
sa1d today, and listening to other testimonies, I have noticed
that the one thing you have asked over and over again is, are
you aware of the hazing policies and the penalties that go
along with it? And, are you aware of the penalties for
underage drinking, and everything like that? I know myself, as
Inter—Sorotity Council President, I am not aware of the
penalties and fines that go'along with serving a minor, as far
as dollar amounts for fines, as far as imprisonment.

The one thing I would 1like to ask you 1is, 1is there
anything available right now in writing? Does the State of New
Jersey put out anything like that, that would be available to
college students?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I'm sorry you weren't here two
weeks ago. It was really very interesting. Maybe if I explain
it to you you will understand the frustration of the
Committee. We had 19 college presidents or deans who met with
this Committee. The only college that did not attend that was
invited was Seton Hall. They probably had a problem getting
someone here.
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MS. STANLEY: I was not aware of that. = -~ .. _ o

7: ASSEMBLYMAN ~VILLANE: . :But, - -every ‘college::president;
and~every=college‘deanﬁgfrdm¢thehve:y;£irstato:the;xeryylast;
said they¥™-had -an extensive:iprogram: and.,a upolicy. concerning
alcohol ‘abuse "and hazing; -and that thereée was.-a-concerted effort
on the part of every school to- make people aware. And‘tO'the
man, or to the woman, they said the education program was the
strongest thing they had to combat this problem.

Now, I — and I didn't mean to do it in any unfair way
to you-—- - But. not one college person here has testified that
they have been briefed on alcohol abuse or the laws in the
State of New Jersey regarding drinking, presenting false proof,
serving a minor. Those things are part of their programs.
They should be part of the program at the university.

The reason why we write the laws -- and a number of us
have written laws about this —-—- is to put a penalty that means
something to a young person when he or she violates the law.
You probably don't know that if you present false proof to get
a drink, we take your license away for six months. If you are
over 21 and you provide a drink to someone who isn't 21, we
take your license away for six months, besides a very hefty
fine. Now obviously, there 1s something missing' between
writing the laws and having the laws become knowledgeable to
the students who matriculate in the State of New Jersey.

MS. STANLEY: Is there anything, though, that is
available in writing right now that lists those laws and the

different penalties -- available to college students?
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes. We are going to be talking
next week to the ABC -- I don't know the exact date -- the

Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control of the State of New
Jersey, which is under the Department of Law and Public Safety
—— under the Attorney General. We will be attempting to put
something together, if there is not something now. That is the
purpose of this Committee; to formulate, in a workshop session,
those things we ¢an do to improve on this problem.
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MS. STANLEY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: ' Thank - you <:very.= much.:.::u.:We
appreciate -your :.coming:.up:-to the microphone to speak withi us.
Did:you -have.:ahy -questions;vC€lare®:;r=m =2nd 2 $6Licy JONRCETLIng
=7, .::f ASSEMBLYWOMAN :FARRAGHER::. No,=thank:youu:::z-rieed sftavt

ASSEMBLYMAN“VILLANE: I would like now:to. speak to Mr.
Cory Graney, past President- of the Inter-Fraternity Council,
Stevens Institute of Technology. ~ Are you still a student, Mr.
Graney? | _

CORY GRANEY: Yes, I am.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you.

MR. GRANEY: I am a mechanical engineer, a senior.
Right now, I am serving the Inter-Fraternity Council as an
advisor. I intend to remain doing so as an alumnus. |

I will skip all the preliminaries, and just give you
the facts. I'll start with alcohol at Stevens, how it relates
to the fraternities in all aspects, and some ideas I have. I
will start with student mixers. They are sponsored by the
student government, and they are v1rtually 99% effective 1in
ellmlnatlng underage drinking. Securlty personnel and deans
are downstairs checking identification. If someone wishes to
drink and they are of age, their hands are stamped. They can
go upstairs to the mixer. There is one section that is set off
just for drinking, and there is one section that is set off
just for dancing. In order to get into the drinking section--
There are campus police there also checking I.D.s, to make sure
your hands are stamped so you are allowed into the area.

Usually the alcohol is shut down by midnight, so there
isn't that much time to get that much alcohol into your system
so you become a problem. Also, dancing is stopped at one. It
is a controlled environment —- highly controlled. It is a very
small campus, 55 ‘acres. There is no need to jump in a car and

go anywhere. So that 1s also not a problem either.




In the dormitories —— freshmen dormitories —--— there is
no alcohol..allowed whatsoever. The RAs érenfairly’effective in
keeping -control: of that..: In.upperclassmen dormitories,:-alcohol
does vexistis It ‘dis..usually<just: in the rooms. There are no
major floorTrparties;: :whéreH-people. are~icoming out of the
woodwork., - o eioowmesr TR0 L e T

But with fraternities, it is a little different
story. We have 10 fraternities and three sororities at Stevens.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Are they on campus or off campus?

MR. GRANEY: They are on campus.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: They are on campus—-—

MR. GRANEY: Yes. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: --as opposed to Rutgers, where
they are off campus. -

' ~ MR. GRANEY: They are all on campus. The three
sororities are not allowed to have alcochol at all, according to
their own nationals. The fraternities are, and do. Parties
are registered with the dean's office one week in advance.
With that comes a guest list and a sample invitation. Parties
Aaré closed -—- :by invitation only. This 1s not always
enforced. There is someone at the doors on the evenings of thé
parties checking college I.D. If you are of the age of 21 or
over, your hands are stamped, and you are allowed into a
separate drinking section, similar to the mixers.

Drinking sections are usually downstairs, whereas
dancing areas are upstairs. If you are underage, you are
allowed into the party, but you are not allowed downstairs in
" the drinking section. The alcohol is stopped at one a.m., and
usually the DJ or the band stops piaying by two a.m,

~ Rush, which is the process of bringing new freshmen
into your fraternities, is dry. There is no alcohol allowed,
but that is not always the case. Rush functions are patrolled
by the Inter-Fraternity Council. When I was president, it was
my job to to go around with the dean, making sure these rules
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were unheld. But I can't be going around constantly every
night, :at::all: hours of the night, and: I:can't: honestly:tell you
what--happensrafter we.are gone..;=—: ¢ {suENIN i iiu. vo.g, L LU0 Do
<... uux:Hazing:at..Stevens .is,_.in my personal -opifiton, almost
nonexistent. I . attribute . that:to :the: :highly:intense academic
environment. All national fraternities at Stevens are required
to have a dry rush. Stevens' laws are the same as those of New
Jersey with hazing. There is none; it is not allowed.

I think what has to be done, as Ms. Stevens said

before, is more education. Freshmen orientation begins three
days prior to the beginning of the academic year. Here is
where we tell the freshmen about the different programs at
Stevens available to them. Here is where we tell them about
the different- activities' that are available to them. There
exists one small group --— it is called'"Super Group" -- where -
campus leaders, such as the president of the Inter-Fraternity.
Council, the dormitory council, the student government tell
them about their own organizations.
‘ Next .year what is scheduled to be put into effect is
taklng the Inter— Fraternlty Council group out of that session,
and incorporating their own special group to just educate the
freshmen on hazing. In that, we hope to—-— Ms. Stevens has a
videotape on hazing, and we intend to show that to them. We
intend to encourage them and their families to speak out if
subjected to hazing. With alcohol, I guess, it is not allowed,
and that seems to be a trigger toward hazing activities.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: So you have an active program on
hazing? |

MR. GRANEY: We intend to implement one. As of now,
no Alcohol Awareness Program exists at Stevens.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That was my next question.

MR. GRANEY: None exists. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: There is no Alcohol Awareness
Program at Stevens?
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MR. GRANEY: ©No, other than Inter-Fraternity Council
meetings, when::the: deans-have come:by and explained things -to
us in detail.. Now,- E-am somewhat familiar with New Jersey
State lawS=aan:hazingrand -serving- atcohol  to minors, ~but -I'~van
safely: say~I am moreiifamiliar' withrthem:than the~majority-iaf
the Stevens students...-I ~am only .familiar -with -them, . not
because someone sat down and told me about them, but because I
have them on paper and I bothered to read it. Every fraternity
president at Stevens is provided with the same papers 1 have.
Whether they read them or not is up to them. I can't honestly
tell you whether they do or not.

We are supposed to have, and we will be having now, a
Predesignated Driver Program. Several people are picked out
the night before, who have said they are not going to drink.
In the event that someone who is not a Stevens student has to
be brought home, to another college or to their home in the -
-general area, there is someone who can drive.

What 1is alsovplanned now is limiting those allowed on
the guest 1list. ©Now, the dean's office 1is receiving guest
lists of up to 200 people. They are not always there
constantly; it is a rotating‘crowd.‘ But, right now, there is a
limit being put at 50 people. This is also to create a more
controlled environment for drinking.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Fifty at the fraternity parties?

MR. GRANEY: Yes. In addition to that, we are going
to be hiring off-duty police officers to stand outside the
doors to check people's I.D.s and to make sure they are on the
guest list. If they are nct, and they are underage, they are
not getting in. :

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What is the practice now at a
fraternity party? '

MR. GRANEY: The practice now is, the officers of the
fraternity—— -

" ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: How do you regulate underage

drinking in a fraternity now?
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MR. GRANEY: I cén honestly say, it does occur.
- —-- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:. It is not .regulated?a:-:: ‘i =0
_ ‘MR. :GRANEY.:. Oh,:we try‘to—regulate it -by~checking the
I1.D.s: before.:theycome--in--the :door' rand: stamping:.their:- hands..
If they ‘are of -age;:they:are’:allowed downstdairs :in: the’ drinking
section. - But,- as has beern stated several times already today,
fake identification, or if someone is your good friend, or 1if
it's someone you Kknow, it does happen. It happens. But that
is primarily the purpose, because the Inter-Fraternity Council
does not want to —- or I should say, they refuse to go around
to other houses to make sure they are following the rules when, .
in fact, if they are not, it can happen to them later on. It's
like ratting on your friends. ThatAis the purpose of hiring
off-duty police officers to stand outside; to have them check
identifications and to have them check guest 1lists, to keep
this maximum of 50 people allotted into your house a constant,
to create more control than firemen.

Another thing you might find extremely helpful 1is
meeting with the alumni Inter—Fraternlty Councils, because they
are, in effect, liable in the end, and they have a little more
control  over their specific fraternity than = might
administrators or other fraternity peopie. That 1s what we are
trying to do also. ' |

Peer ©pressure does exist; it exists  Dbasically
everywhere -- the encouragement to have a drink, or to have a
few drinks, or to see how much you can drink. But, as I said
~before, I don't see it as evident at the Stevens campus as I
have elsewhere. o

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I have to interrupt for just one
minute. I keep hearing the same thing, just to have a drink,
to socialize, to have a drink, but then to see how much you can
drink. I have heard that a couple of times today. Why don't
you explain to us just what that means?
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MR. GRANEY: I don't think I can. It is the mentality
of the individual:: who:.you. are dealingz;withg_;‘Whether' he be
involved in a lot-of sports: or:in:a--fraternity,there .is. that
stereotypical ‘image::off an amazing -social:r}ife;.::and:: beerarand
alcohol all over.the-place. It is.supposedly: something to ‘da. .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:  "It's--macho - ‘to have a - big
capacity? Is that what you mean? o

MR. GRANEY: In some cases, yes. We have just had the
most successful rush at Stevens. Nearly 56% of the freshmen
"class has pledged. They were well aware of all the laws. I
personally stuffed each freshman's mailbox with the laws -- no
alcohol, none of this, and none of that. I sold the system as
leadership, brotherhood, scholarship, and then at the end I
said, "Oh, by the way, We have a social life." I am fairly
proud of that. I think I can attribute that to the success of
this year's rush program.

I am not trying to paint a pretty picture at Stevens.
Problems do exist. When there are cases of abuse of alcohol,
you have damage in dormitories, damage in fraternity houses;
you have fire alarms being pulled at all hours of the night;
noise complaints, and even fighting. That is probably where we
see it the most, when fights break out and somecne does get
hurt. We have had, in the past, incidents when an individual
was so intoxicated he might fall down the stairs, or something,
- but that is a rarity.

- 1 will address the 1idea of keg bans on campus. I
don't think it will work, simply because it is true that a
fraternity is going to go —-— or a club or whatever -— out and
purchase the same quantity of alcohol, whether it is in cans or
bottles or kegs. It makes no difference to them. They will
have to fork out more money, but they are going to ‘be
accomplishing what they want. You might want to start with a
ban on hard alcohol. We are doing something which probably you
haven't heard of. We are trying to open our campus pub again.
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We are going to «create that _controlled environment. I,
personally,..am.going: to be bartending.:.. It.is. going to be' open
one or -two: nights :a@ week. I -think I am responsible.enough.to
know~notto~ servea persen whovis3a1reédy intoxicatédi~-There
willrbe -other+ peopleniat~the: doorway,ccechecking:whether:orimot
you are of age...Only beer: and wine are going to be served; .no
alcohol —- no hard alcohol, I should say.

The local bars -in the area are very —-— I shouldn't say
very, but fairly effective in keeping péople under the age of
21 out. The only way that happened was because someone was
made an example of. A liquor store was closed down because
they were caught serving underage individuals. Maybe that is
what you have to do also, make examples out of people, because
then it works- The dean's office, with this party policy we
have, set up now—— One fraternity did violate it. They were
fined $500. If it is fined again, their charter is going to be
‘suspended. Sometimes education works, but making an example
out of someone works a lot better. ’ .

_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Cory. Are
there any questidns.from the panel? | - A

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: I have one question.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Spadoro?

ASSEMBLYMAN  SPADORO: Just one qﬁestion. What
percentage of your student population lives on campus, versus
off campus? '

MR. GRANEY: I would safely say 90%. It is a very
high peréentage. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Residential?

MR. GRANEY: Yes. On the average, 40% are members of
either a fraternity or a sorority. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Graney.

I would now like to hear from Ms. Phyllis Scheps, from
the New Jersey P.T.A. Mrs. Scheps?
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PHYLTLTIS S CHEP S: Good morning. . That is. how I
started my presentation, but I-see-it is'now afternoon. "I want
to thank-you:for: allowing me ‘to:bel heard.now.:L My:name: is
Phyllis ~Scheps.--I "am representing the.New Jersey: State P.T:Ac
as ' ‘their :-Safety ~Chairman. : ‘Statewide, I -‘represent - 224,000
members. We are theé largest child advocacy organization in the
State, the nation, and the world. ’

I dislike starting off with a statistic stating we
have nearly a quarter of a million members, but it is ‘ne’cessary"
because what we are truly talking  about are a quarter of a
million parents; parents who are scared to death, confused, and
are typical of parents who worry themselves weary over their
children's health, safety, and well-being. I am here because
we are concerned about oﬁr college—age children and for the
ramifications this has on our junior high school, high school,
and even elementary school students. ,

~Yes, I am here because James Callahan has died. It
was not a matter of, was it going to happen; it was just a
_matter' of when it was going to happen. This was a needless
death that has made the headlines in the news for over a
month. What -do not make the headlines are all the accidents
that happen at colleges, which have not been told in-depth.
What else do not make the headlines are the severe
alcohol-related problems as a result of youthful drinking.

Drinking is the leading cause of death due to
suicides, drown.ings, and accidents, and is attributed to a
large percentagfe of juvenile crime, including sexual assaults,
as we have been reading about recently. The effect it has on
the 1learning process and the disruption of family 1life is
incalculable. What has been talked about, but never completed,
is the implementation of the 21—year——61d drinking age. Its
intent was to eliminate drinking by the State's children and
‘youth. '
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. If I may just deviate from my prepared testimony, I am
very happy that. . I have had: the opportunity to hear-from ithese
young:-people. :iArlot:.ofi:them: don't.. remember ~me, but when we
were ' inveiveds.in ra;isi:n@r(ehe:i drinking riagei.-I spoRe-‘te rthHeir
predecessors.c=We Had & :good ‘exchangé:.of: what:was 7going ‘to
happen "when the-drinking -age was.raised.::Somewhere- along the
line we have all failed pretty miserably, because obviously
when I hear about Kkegs being allowed, or cut down to a half a
keg,. when we talk about possibly trying to open up‘ a pub--
When I hear all of these -things, there is a saying that we
monitor them. When I hear of RAs and preceptors who,
unfortunately, have not been educated to what it 1is all
about-- It 1is very painful personally to hear what is going
on. I want to let the young people in this room know that I am
not here to hurt them. I am here because I would like to help.

Ten years ago, we started the issue of the drinking
‘age, but I really would just like to continue on. I simply
felt it necessary to interject that.

As I said, 21 was intended to address all the youthful
problems related to youthful drinking. It certalnly was not
intended to be just a Band-Aid to cover a cancer route as‘
evidenced by our children. In your packets today you will find
testimony to this fact supplied by our Education Commissioner,
Saul Cooperman, 1in his testimony supporting raising the
drinking age to 21. All of you will be receiving a packet that
is probably the most voluminous packet of testimony you have
ever had But I felt it was necessary to document everythlng I
am going to say here today.

I am here today also to offer our thoughts on where we
think the responsibility 1lies with this tragedy, and
suggestions for what should be done to prevent this from ever
happening again. Frankly, we are all responsible -- society at
large. We as parents are responsible, as P.T.A.s and parents.
The students are responsible, and so are the educators. The
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main responsibility, in our opinion, is with the leadership of

Rutgers, . and ~their :-educators, and - those responsible . for. the
implementation of the law. :¥es; ‘parents.must bear some-of~the

blame, :because they ikrow:what:.goes ‘orrin~Butrthé frustrationidis,

they zden*t: know¥what:ita: do:cabout: iti7= Stidents: must bear:some

of the blame, because they know they are breaking the law.

But, yes, I am putting the major portion of the
responsibility where the responsibility first occurred. This
was .at the doorstep of President Bloustein, David Bytne
(phonetic spelling), Student Health Advisor, the dean of
student life at Rutgers, and Dr.—-

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: May I suggest, if possible, that
you get to the recommendations. You know, to include
personalities "in your testimony, at a ‘particular institution,
is really not the purpose of this panel. Thank you.

MS. SCHEPS: May I respond to that before I continue,
and I will respect whatever you wish.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: The Chair 1is indicating to YDu

that I do not want the names of personalltles or partlcular

unlver51t1es mentloned in your testimony.

MS. SCHEPS: All right. May I proceed with the-

institution, because this is--

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I think what we're looking for
are recommendations about this kind of universal problem at the
college level. I am really not looking to focus on the single
problem at Rutgers, or at Montclair, or at Drew, or at Seton
Hall. I think if you will' keep your comments to
recommendations on how to solve this problem, it will be better
for the panel.

MS. SCHEPS: Okay. I am going to have a 1little

difficulty, to be honest, for one or two reasons. I do respect
what you're saying. What you are trying to get at, is perhaps
my perspective and understanding of what we can do. I have
tried to give a historical pérspective of why this is
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happening. We. . have heard from Rutgers; .we have heard from
Princeton, -we “ofiutheP.T.A.. I refer—-back ::to: Rutgers:. only
begause:.of :the fact;‘.tha;t:;-.the}z5wergz:.:our::prime opponents: td 2I,C
and..it :hasute have racvreflectiors-on:these. young..people..:..They
have to-know that: - the  leadership. has opposed .it.._:All:=of . the
suggestions that are-going to come up today-—— - S

I am going to sum up now, because to continue to read
this—— To be honest with you, I have named names, and I have
thrown the responsibility. It is senseless to continue in that
way, but I did leave a packet with you. The press has received
the packet. We want to do what is best for our kids, and
unless leadership -—- just let me talk generally leadership -—-
is going to take responsibility for what has happened, I don't
think anything is going to change. I think we will be back
here in a year from now, or two years from now, looking at each
other, and saying, "What can we do?" ‘

When I was a teen, and I think this applies to most of
the young people in the room, and even as adults, we take our
moves from the leadership. We allow thirigs to happen. We do
things that we know are going to be allowed. Speaking
generally, the drinking age was raised for everybody. It was
not just raised for Rutgers or Princeton. It was raised for
everybody in the State. At times it even seemed, during the
drinking age debate, that it was a 1little bit of an elitist
discussion, because there are young people who graduated from
high school who go on to vocational education. They just do
not choose, or they are not able to go to colleges. The
drinking age law applies to them also.

I would just .-like to take one minute to quickly 1look
through my statement, to 'see if there is one thiﬁg I can
highlight without pointing a finger specifically at anyone,
although I must be honest, we have pointed our finger where we
feel the responsibility lies. It is not just a matter of
naming names, and saying, "“You're to blame." If you will just
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note in the beginning, I started out by saying, "We are all to
blame." - But I think that you, as a :legislator,. Mr.. Chairman,
¢hairing many, many committee meetings—— .. .Sometimes:a:tie-in .of
where’* imour-optanien, the problem lies;cis whattis:going tarbe
necessaryi: "y LAt Fhe deaderalio naz Sooozsd it. Al of tho

I- think rather than continue Zon--with this, I have
several recommendations. There are positive programs for
teens. It does stab me, as the mother of two grown men, and as
the grandmother of a 1little girl, that I am still hearing now
things that I heard 10 or 15 years ago, before we went to
" raising the drinking age; that people éannot have a good time
without alcohol. 1It's true it is societal. I have listened to
all the arguments that for 2000 years people have been
drinking, but- if sometime they will 1look in their education
books, they will find out—- In other words, if alcohol first
had to be approved by the Food and Drug Administration today,
it would not be approved. : ‘

A couple of quick facts, and then I will finish what I
have to say. I would like everyone here, including our young
people, to know that alcohol -— not the drunk driving, but
alcohol -— 1is responsible for more teen deaths, and moré
deaths, than all the cocaine, all the crack, all the drugs. put
together. In other words, péople do not understand that
alcohol is a drug. It is the number one drug of choice in this
State. A couple of the young people from the fraternities and
the colleges here mentioned that they are careful that they
don't drink hard alcohol. Alcohol 1is alcohol. Beer and wine
- and distilled spirits all have the same alcohol content.

I am really very saddened -- and I know for a fact you
have read my testimony -- to see the alcohol education program
that was promised 10 years ago, hasn't even been started.
Nothing is going to change. All of our recommendations, and
all of our get-togethers at these hearings will be in vain, if
we do not go back to the original concept of education. '

Thank you very much.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, too. . The
next witness-—— . Dol e R S RS PRI I
T ; ASSEMBLYMAN -SPADORO:: =Mr:::Chaitrmanyirmay:I task-her &
questloni__;uf: soinico. The onyoRian Gless Ge srhas Semonme f0

nooazs2rtASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We have some other things to get

to, if I may. Thank you, Assemblyman. = ~= =~ ~=~
| The next witnesses I would like to speak with are Dave
Musikant and Anthony Ruggieri. While they are coming up, we

ought . —— when we are talking about P.T.A.s and we're talking
about the colleges and the problem with alcohol at the
colleges— A good number of the colleges have said that they

inherit the problem because of the abuse of alcohol at the high
school 1level, and some have even said at the grade school
level. So, it is a continuing problem. It is not only in the
colleges. '

Gentlemen, where are you from?

DAVID MUSIKANT: IathaveMusikant. Iamfrom
_R-utgers University. ‘I am President of Phi Gamma Delta. With
me is Tony Ruggieri, Secretary of Rutgers' Fraternity Council.
He is also from Phi Gamma Delta. 4 '

Mr. Chairman, talking about what you just said, I
think what happened with James Callahan was a horrifying event,
and something should definitely be done to make sure that a
tragedy 1like this never happens again. I think that James
Callahan's death is an education in itself to the students of
what can happen if one does drink to excess.

What scares me, is that at Rutgers excess drinking
still occurs at clubs, bars, dorms, apartments. We have all
seen what has happened with excess drinking, but it still
occurs. I feel this happens because after drinking for five
years, I don't think you can tell someone all of a sudden that
now they can't drink. I am very much for education, but I
think it should definitely start in the high schools. Most
people  start drinking when they are in eighth grade, ninth



grade, and high school. The problem definitely lies there.
.~ —-ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Anthony?

ANTH O:N¥= R'U GG:iI+E R Fr Iiwould:-like:to:speak about
what:is.going on at Rutgers -- the programs we do have set up.
First of " all,  there ‘is- the " Fraternity-: €ouncil;: :-which -.is
comprised of an exec board, and then we have representatives
from each fraternity --— the president and an representative.
The programs that we désigned before the death of James
Callahan—— We had pledge programs, so we could install unity
among plédges into the Greek system as Rutgers University
students. We had barbecues, softball games. We also issued’

pamphlets to the rushees. These pamphlets expressed hazing
laws and the bylaws of the RFC.
Also, we had programs for the Greeks -- educational

programs. They are for AIDS information, sexually transmitted
~diseases, and resume workshops for seniors who are planning on
graduating. These are sponsored by the individual fraternities ‘
and sororities, and they'are highly suggested by the dean of"
students, the dean of sorority and ftaternity affairs, and'also
by the exec council of the RFC. - ‘

Also at the University, we have a group called "Board
of Control." It is the job of the Board of Control to enforce
the bylaws that the exec council has set up with suggestions
from the dean of students. These bylaws include closed
parties, registered - social events, and responsible alcohol
consumption. If by chance ‘these laws are broken, then the
Board’of Controlitakes action, such as placing the fraternity
on probation. | '

The Board of Control can only suggest that the
fraternity be placed on probation. It is, in turn, brought to
the exec council and discussed, and then with the dean of
students and the dean of fraternity and sorority affairs we
make a judgment, based upon what information the Board of
Control has compiled about the particular event that occurred.
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Most of the fraternities _and sororities are encouraged
by the administration, particularly: the dean of students and
the -dean: .of- fraternity:. and' .sorority.: affairs, to--sponsor
educationali:programs . Forrmyself,cbeing: ar member:. of+:Phiz~Gamma
Delta, we were placed onc probatiomiat:one time:n:To amend: our

bprobatiod~status,awe.had:té.spoﬁsorweducationa1;programs; We
had an Alcohol Awareness Seminar. - We had to particupate in
distributing pamphlets on sexually transmitted diseases. We

also had to improve our GPA.
' So, the -university, as well as the RFC, has—— -You.
know, we are trying to encourage fraternities themselves to
take an active role in educating themselves insofar as problems
that occur on campus, and eventually in society, when we get
out of college. |

’ That is all I have to say. _ ,

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Tony, you know there is some
discussion at Rutgers about eliminating sororities and
fraternities. That has been mentioned—-—

MR. RUGGIERI: Yes, I am aware of that. .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: --at the very highest level.

MR. RUGGIERI: Yes. o

_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And, of course, I think I ought
to tell you that I do not ascribe to that particular theory. I
“don't think the problem is because there are Greeks. I think
the problem, obviously, is from a different source.

~But, I want to ask you a question -- both of you -- if
I may. -Do you think it could possibly ever happen at Rutgers,
or at any other college, that fraternities 1like yours could
have a party and not serve underage students?

MR. RUGGIERI: To be honest with you, it's a nice
thought. I mean, believe me, no one wants to put themselves in
a liability situation 1like that. But, you know, it is hard to
_control everyone. I mean, even as a nation, I am sure our own
government has trouble controlling the 1laws it sets out. I
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think also on our level, that we are going to run into problems
like that. .. But:the: idea:is: to work- -towards that, yes. -1 think
in the- positions: we-are- all“in-as -executive .6 members of..our
different:«councilsy= that: is . what hwergtroymtda-strive fof ==
enforcing: the laws:=='the fact that people: don't drihkrif*they
are underage, “or are put in situations where those events can
occur. That is what we try to do, and we do it to the best of
our ability, but it doesn't always work out that way.

It's unfortunate, but it happens. We don't want it to
happen, but it does. ‘ .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes, do you want to‘respond to
that, Mr. Musikant? | - ' ‘ ‘

MR. MUSIKANT: I think we definitely could control the
underage drinking in the fraternities with a 1little more
support from the alumni. As we said before, it 1is hard to
control your peers as such, but when there is an alumni person-
there, there is a lot more authority. Other fraternities have
existed without having any alcohol whatsoever. Just the fear
of'knowing that this could happen to other students, should
‘make them realize'that‘having'something like this happen is not
really such a bad thing. It is just a matter of‘time.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You know there are a good number
of parents who think, when they send an 18-year-old to Rutgers,
or Princeton, of Rider, that there 1is going to be some
supervision. I think perhaps your parents thought there would
be more control as to what went on at your dormitories or your
fraternities or your apartments. So, you understand, a lot of
people think there is some control, when there really isn't.

MR. MUSIKANT: Mr. Chairman, the one problem with
that, is that the parents are Dbasically blaming the
universities, and, as I said before, no parent's kid drinks.
But, they do, and it happens at home. It happens in their own
houses, and they don't even know about it. There is no control
there. In turn, they are just trying to blame the universities
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for it. I think that is a problem we have to take care of
@arlier..: . e i s G o Ll UnLSS mmes oTeiag
i . -ASSEMBLYMAN-: VELLANE: [Tell:me-~xsomething.else. Again,
It : cancrhelp~us,i® because. wes haver to= formulate cssomezkind of
recommendations:-at theirendr of. tliese meetiings.: ' tAre 1y6u aware;,’
as a fraternity president, or as someone -running:a:party, -that
you can lose your driver's license because you serve someone
underage?

MR. MUSIKANT: Yeah, I was aware of the liabilities.
I knew I had total liability for the party.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And you knew you could receive a
fine or go to jail for serving a minor?

MR. MUSIKANT: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:" I mean, you are aware of those
specific things. Do we need to work in that area to let more
people know that? Are you aware, Tony? ' ,

MR. RUGGIERI: Yes, I am aware. I think there is a
certain amount of responsibility that individuals must take
upbn themselves —— to carry out themselves in a respectful
manner. I think that is going to occur through-edﬁ'catihg them
more. You can't always hold everyone's hand in whatever they
do. There is a certain responsibility you have to take upon
yourself; that is, making = people aware of their
responsibilities as members of society and members of an
organization. There is a certain amount they have to do on
their own, at least meet the laws, or meet the responsibilities
of the organization halfway. That is the least we can ask of a
person — to meet halfway.

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Let's just go back a minute.
Alcohol is a drug. It is against the law in the State of New
Jersey to use that drug under the age of 21. We regular liquor
licenses and establishments that sell that particular drug --
alcohol —- and we have specific things we do to people who
violate that law. '
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Now, if you're saying to me that it is the obligation
of the. person Underage as much as it 1is of the fraternity in
the responsibility..of+ providing  drinks, ~or:allowing...people. .ta
drink::innyour thométesawhichisishyour fraternity = then Ithave:d
Yittteproblemowith that =ncIs.ithatewhatzyouw!re. telling-me,wthat
it is-arr-equal--responsibility ofuthezperson;who;says;'?lgwant'a
drink," when he is- 18, as it -is <your responsibility in
providing it?

MR. RUGGIERI: Well, they know it is against the law.
They cannot drink if they are not 21. If they are not 21, they
shouldn't put themselves in that position.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Should you allow them to do that?

MR. RUGGIERI: No, I shouldn't. I should not allow
them into my house and allow them to drink if they are
underage. You know, if you are giving me the right of a liquor
license —— to have 1liquor in my house -- then it is also my
right to say, "Listen, you can't come into my house." It is
also their responsibility, you know, to abide by the laws, and
say, "Hey, I'm nmot 21; I can't drink." Just like if you are
giving me the right to have a license, I should say, "I can
- serve liquor to people who are 21, but to no one else =- to no
one under 21." ‘

So, I'm saying there 1is a .responsibility on both
parts. . We all have to abide by the laws.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Anthony. Is there a
question? Mr. Shusted?

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: I have one question. What
effort, 1if any, is made by either the university or the
national organization of fraternities to inform you, as the
president of a fraternity, or the leadership of a fraternity,
about the laws' in New Jersey and the penalties involved? You
say you know about them, but what effort is made to really

inform you?
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MR. MUSIKANT:. . Just speaking from my own experience in
our fraternity,': our mational 'is very:strong in letting us know
that .we:have.ithe; liability.:::::They: have -never::said, ;“You:-are
gaing to have your licernse 'taken:away :for.six-months.,:;andipay &
fine," but they let us know we are liable,with a ‘possible jail
sentence, and so on. One problem -is, many fraternities have
very strong nationals, where they get their education from
them. But there are a lot of independent fraternities that do
not have a national, and they do not always get the education
they should get.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: How about the university itself?

MR. MUSIKANT: The university does give some sort of
education, like letting you know you are liable, but it is not
as, I guess, straight as it should be. '

' ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Are there any posters c1rculated
in your house that advise students who are underage who may -
drink of the penalties they would incur?

MR. MUSIKANT: No, not at all. _

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Do any of your members know
anything about the penalties? A -

MR. MUSIKANT: Yeah, many members do. Many members
have had their licenses taken away for heving a false I.D.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: All right, thank you. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much. We
appreciate your beihg here. We are learning-a lot.

I would now like to hear from Ms. Theresa Loser and

Mr. George Shapiro. Please come up and tell us who you
represent. ) ‘
THERESA LOSER: My name is Theresa Loser. I am the
Assistant Dean of Students at Rider College. My primary
responsibility is I am in charge of fraternity and sorority
affairs. With me is-- Do you want to introduce yourself,
George?
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GEORGE S HAPIRO: All right. I am George Shapiro.
I am President of Phi Kappa Tau Fraternity at Rider College. I
am currently a senior at the college. I am 22 years old. I am
of age to drink. ’ | -

MS. LOSER: I will just go ahead and start, and I
think we can maybe just complement each other. . We are on
spring break, so we had some problems bringing people today. I
am going to try, very quickly, to do an outline. President
Frank Elliott has already appeared at these hearings. I
attended with him the first time, so I am not going to be
redundant about our policies and procedures; because you
already have copies of all of our documentation.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yeah, we heard that last time.

MS. LOSER: So I don't want to do that again.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We would like to hear from the
student, but somewhat from you.

MS. LOSER: Okay. Quickly, I just want to talk about
policing the pressures the students have from my perspective as
an advisor and eduéator_at the college, and alsd some of the
problems we have which you would like to know, and then end it
up with some recommendations. I think I can just throw it back
to George at that vpoint, if he wants to interject from his
viewpoint. o ' '

I just want to say for the record that our college
does own the structures of the buildings. All of our groups
are national. We employ a house manager, who is a member of
the fraternity or sorority, to work there as a residence life
employee, to supervise and enforce college policy.

Policing of social events by fraternities and
sororities is done by our campus security. They can walk in
anytime they please. They have access to any areas of the
house. They are also a part of the Dean of Students' Division.

Some of the pressures that I think many of our
students face are faced by the officers themselves trying to
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keep order in a house when there are people there. Mainly the

parties -are::by invitation-only.  ‘We'do:.not have: a.policy--:. We.
do not:have;ac form that: studentsc:chave to £ill’ out=te registér -a
party+= at ourk-college. Each group is 1left to their own

discretionitastashow they:iwant:to implement: anyikindref policy
on their own.  I--may just throw it to- George-~and ask him to
comment on that, please.
MR. SHAPIRO: During the parties——
. ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: George, before we get to you,
what is the policy of the college about dormitory parties?

MS. LOSER: Okay. Dormitory =~ parties  and
fraternity/sorority parties are the same. It is all under a
blanket residence hall. We . consider our fraternities and
sororities to be residence halls. The policy is: Twenty-one

years of age, you may consume alcohol in your room. No kegs
are allowed; no beer halls; no alcohol anywhere in public
areas, which would mean hallways, basement, and lounges.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: '~ What do you do when someone
underage in your dormitories 1is drlnklng, .or has a party? |

MS. LOSER: The re81dent advisors are charged with the
responsibility of writing that incident up and bringing it to
the judieiél. It can be anything from carrying an open
container in the hallway. A student will be written up the
first time for something like that. 1If you are having a party
in ydur room, if it is loud and out of hand, they are going to
confront you. Anyone in that room who 1is underage and
consuming is going to be written up, and will go through the
college judicial system. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you have many fire alarms -—-

false alarms —— at your dormitories?
MS. LOSER: Yes, we do.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Are they the result of

drunkenness on the part of the students?

76



. .MS. LOSER: Yes and no. - I mean, it would be hard to
document what - exactly' causes' them. ‘It could: be:anything from
someone ‘holding :a::1itucigarette:. up.:there - *Some- of: thes'alarms
are very:seansitive.! i:0¥: spraying amcaerosol dardis o tn2tr onun

- ./ASSEMBLYMAN. VILLANE:. '@ Do —ryou~~have, "‘around ~ your
college, some of the problems of.the. local  independent - bars
running special parties? '

MS. LOSER: Yes, sir, we do. We have several in the
area. A lot of times even the fraternities will co-sponsor
events. You will see the fraternity name and the name of the
bar running the special. The bar is still taking the
responsibility, but our students are working there in the
facility. So we do have a fair amount of publicity done by
outside establishments. |

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: George?

MR. SHAPIRO: First of all, I didn't come today
prepared to make any tYpe of a statement. However, I was a bit
perturbed about what is going on here today. Not that I want
.to mock the Committee itself, but you have asked for my
comments, and you are going to get them. o ‘

First, I think there is a pfoblem. This whole thing/
from my point of view, started over the Rutgers incident. - You
have turned it into two separate—¥ Or, you have set up one
Committee for two separate ideas. You are looking at hazing
and alcohol abuse. I think they are two totally separate
ideas, and should probabiy be looked at by two totally separate
committees. Hazing cannot be tolerated in fraternities and
sororities, and it should not be. Anything that can be done to
stop it, should be done, from a legal point of view, from a
college point of view, from the State's point of view. It
can't be tolerated at all; too much 1liability. I am a
president of a fraternity, and I won't allow it in my
fraternity. There is too much liability for me and for the
other members of my house.
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On the other hand, alcohol. I'm sorry, but I don?t
care:whatukind;aﬁ;iaws;yauxﬂay:down—fr I.:don't know what this.
Committee!s! ‘goals= are” —=::to:change: the.:laws,..or: to strengthen
the laws.:=+E“misure (youcdonity evercknow! that at this point.
However, youDéanhvstrengthenithe laws atduyouzlike, -but: college
students are still .going "todrink, -no matter what “their "age
is. They are at college. Not that I am calling all of you-
0old, but I don't think there are any of you on the Committee
who have.been in college when the drinking age was 18. Correct
me if I am wrong. Maybe one? Maybe that person should be
looked at as the center of the Committee then.

There 1is a big difference, 1looking at drinking on
campuses when the age was 18 and when it is 21. It is hard to
enforce. Everybody on collegé campuses wants to drink, and
" they're going to, no matter what kind of laws you lay down.
The thing that has to be done is, members have to be educated.
I don't think there 1is enough of that going on. I consider
ﬁ&self fairly educated on 1liability and on alcohol poisoning,
and I don't think the majority of students on campuses are
educated. I have never heard—- S o

Two weeks ago, you had a meeting with mostly’
presidents of the colleges, I take it. Obviously, they are not
going to come up here and tell you that they don't have
sufficient alcohol policies. They are presidents of
institutions, and they are going to come up here and glorify
their institutions. I guarantee you, not one of them came up
here and told you that there is an alcohol education class
offered to students at their campus, maybe for three credits,
to get the students to go, to educate them on how to drink, how
much their bodies can tolerate.

You said -- or somebody said —- "to see how much you
can drink." I believe that was said earlier today. Yeah, that
happens today, but that happens today because people are not
educated. They don't understand that drinking can cause death
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by alcohol poisoning. You're saying there are many incidents
of people dying .. from-alcohol poisoning, - but: that is not the
anly.: problem.::~ How:rabout rthe:-people!:whdcvomit: when:: they; are
sleeping,. and :die?2:=That is~amother: major problem. cnEducation
is the prime goal of:what'is going.on. - == ~-ur oo ool

_ - You -brought 'up “a couple of points, Mr. Chairman. You
said that the students who have been up here aren't educated
about the laws and everything. I don't feel as if we have to
know what is going to happen to us if we serve a minor. I know
I am not allowed to do 75 miles per hour oﬁ the New Jersey
Turnpike. I don't know what 1s going to happen to me if I do
75. I don't know the fine that is going to be imposed. I just
know I am not allowed to do that.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:  You don't think that is
important -- that you ought>to know that if you do 75 on the
Parkway they take your license away? '

MR. SHAPIRO: ©No. I know—-—

ASSEMBLYMAN. VILLANE: You don't think that is a
deterrent? . o ‘ - L
MR, SHAPIRO: I know that I am not supposed to do it.
That should be the major concern. I know I am not supposed to
serve a minor. Why do I have to know all of the laws behind
it? I am not a lawyer. You are not going to be able to teach
everyone the laws.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, the penalty for a crime 1is
usually put on the crime to act as a deterrent. Now, 1f you
don't think that taking a teen-ager's, or a 20-year-old's
license away is a deterrent against drinking, then the laws are
all wrong. You don't think that is a deterrent? ‘

MR. SHAPIRO: No, I am not saying it 1s not a
deterrent. I mean, I agree it is a deterrent.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Oh, it is a deterrent? Then if
you knew about it, it might deter you?
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MR. SHAPIRO: But, you were criticizing people for not
knowing-exactly what would:happen. to:them. .. Loat o &m0 T
. _-ASSEMBLYMAN :VILLANE:z Iet-me :clear::thatwviup foxr.youg
Geargé;z;so;qwuﬁﬁwill=fundebstand;zne§ wwasn'tu.crfticizinguthemr
The president-of’ your ‘university came in and told us that they
have an-active program on drug.and.alcohol abuse and on hazing,
and that the students were aware of these policies. Obviously,
if you don't know what the crime is, or if it is a crime, or
what the. penalty is, then the presidents and the colleges are
not doing their job.
MR. SHAPIRO: All right. Obviously, we have two
different views on that, so I will continue.
Secondly, You say that parents send their children to
colleges and are looking for supervision from the officials. I
agree, but aren't they also looking for education for their
students? Alcohol education is part of an.education.- ’
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Nobody said they weren't looking
for that. : _ :
| ~ MR. SHAPIRO: No, I'm not saying they did. What, all
of a sudden, makes me—— December 13, 1986, I was not of age to
drink, and thenlthe next day I wake up, and all of a sudden I'm
knowledgeable to drink. I mean, it doesn't make sense. Not
that you should drop the drinking law; I'm not for that. But,
again, students on campuses are not being educated.
Earlier, there was mention of a five-hour open bar.
All the students who were invited to that were 21. What is the
difference between you going to a five-hour open bar —— tell me
you have never been to a party with an open bar -— and me going
to an open bar? I am of age. The only difference is, you're
saying I am not educated. Well, educate us. Teach us and
educate us on what can happen if we drink too much. ‘
- ASSEMBLYMAN' VILLANE: Because I wrote the Hazing Act,
and because I formulated this Committee through resolution, I
want to tell you that hazing and alcohol abuse are very much
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related. Your suggestion that there ought to be two panels to
look -ata_them\=iS4zinterestingm_: Ninety-seven percent of the
accidents:.that. are.caused in hazing..—-.deaths,::accidents, ,and
injuries =+ are the iresultrofi:alcohol wbuseéi and drinking; -That
I's. why. we. wrote:fhe lawuin<vthe firstiplace.:ncThat cis::why: we rare
investigating this abuse of  alcohol and hazing. You ought to
know that hazing doesn't only occur in fraternities or clubs.
It happens in sororities, too. We have had cases of abuse and
injury to. young women in sororities, also.

There is a question from Assemblywoman Farragher.

MR. SHAPIRO: Let me just comment on that. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I would 1like Assemblywoman
Farragher to respond. ¥ |

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: I would just like to clarify
the point on the five-hour open bar. It is the mixed signal I

was referring to. Okay? On the front page, there 1is an:
excellent illustration of what will -- what can happen to a
drinking  driver. But my point was, it isn't the college's

fault that society's perception of a good time is alcohol.
That was the point. But evérybody who reads this paper is not -
21 and over, either. , ‘

MR. SHAPIRO: It is not the college's fault -- the
perception of alcohol. I do believe the college can take some
stands and educate the members of its campus on how to drink
properly.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: You're absolutely right. It
is also a responsibility of a parent, as I am. '

MR. SHAPIRO: I agree.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Okay? I did that in my
home. I feel my children, although I know they have had drinks
underage—-- I know that because I gave them to them; becéuse I
didn't want it to be mysterious and exotic; because I wanted
them to know what it felt like in my home, not on a street
corner. So, yes, I took an approach that was rather unusual
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maybe, but I wanted to prevent them from going off to parties
at Rutgers: or: Lehigh-‘or~wherever,  and- trying it- out fof the
first-time sz am: very..proud te:sgay -thatedi:think::my-children
havefaenesponsiblEhattitude to that) butinot every:parent .is ime.
- MR. - SHAPIRO: -~ That 'is. -exactly. the goal I am-getting
at. You educated your children. . -

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much. Mr.
Spadoro?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPADORO: Just one additional question.
The point you made about education-- At the first session —-
and I agree with the Chairman -- the representatives from the
major universities -- the presidents and the representatives:
from the deans' offices -- led, I think, this Committee to

believe that- there was an active program at all the
institutions in this State, educating young people regarding
the risks to health of alcohol abuse. I think it is apparent
to me that we may have been misled. The testimony I have heard
today indicates, to a great extent, that there is an occasional
program. It 1looks as Vthough it 1is voluntary as faf as
attendance is concerned, so I don't get the_impressibn‘ﬁhat the
undergraduates in the State are being given the detailed
information necessary for them to make a judgment for their own

- well-being. »
I think your testimony has been wvaluable. It Jjust
reinforces. I do agree with your position that education is
the way to go. Do you have any suggestion of how education

could be implemented at your college, so that we 1legislators
could be satisfied that the young people not only know what the
laws are, but what the penalties are, and also what the health
risks are of alcohol abuse? '
ﬁR. SHAPIRO: Yes. Theresa has something, but I would
like to comment. You have to educate the leaders of the campus
—-— the student leaders. You have to educate the entire campus,
but you have to educate the student leaders, and let them take
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it back to the rest of the campus. Obviously, you cannot
educate:.the _entire campus on something like that. It would be
nice~to try it, but.d4t. has.to be mandatory for: student leaders

Y - - - -~

to be.educatediia ciiiinds £ Toot . DUT nROT wvary oaions TR me,

ASSEMBLYMAN:VILLANE: ..Thank:you very much,:George:,: and
you, too,; Theresa. el

I would like next to call up Mr. V. James'Castiglia,
National Vice President, Alpha Chi Rho Fraternity.

You ought to know, while Mr. Castiglia 1is getting
ready, that some people on the panel, when the vote came up to
raise the drinking age, opposed that bill -=- voted against
raising the drinking age because there was a feeling, by'some
of the members of the Legislature, that we were attempting to
penalize everybody for the abuse of a few. So, that created
some problems. It solved the problem of the lobby, the P.T.A.,
and the Mothers Against Drunk Driving, but it created a problem
for a lot of young people in the State of New Jersey.
| Mr. Castiglia? o - |
V. JAH E S CASTTIGLTIA: I think it created a
problem for the people in New Jersey, bécause'by nmking the
drinking age 21, you took the 18- to 2l-year-olds out of your
‘enforcement. ' ' o

I am going to be very brief in my comments. I know
there are a lot of other people who want to testify.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Castiglia, why don't you
just tell everybody who you represent, for the record?

MR. CASTIGLIA: I am the National Vice President of
the Fraternity of Alpha Chi Rho. The Fraternity of Alpha Chi
Rho is a national fraternity with approximately 45 chapters in
the Northeast. We have five chapters in the State of New
Jersey -— at Rutgers, Fairleigh Dickinson-Teaneck, Fairleigh
Dickinson-Rutherford, Stockton State, and Trenton State.

_ My perspective is that obviously there is an alcohol
abuse problem on campus, and it 1is created by peer pressute.
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That gives this Committee a problem, because you can't
legislate . away  ‘peer . pressure. = The ‘problem " is because..the
drinking :age -is ‘21, :and:-on-college:campuses.you have reughly
halfctheiistudént population who are going to be underage, and
half the tstudentpopulation: who:-arfe "going: to:be' of :age.~ . ¥You
are creating -a -situation. This is why this Committee is
probably focusing on college alcohol abuse, because you are
creating on campus a situation where the State of New Jersey is
trying to treat college students differently. I agree with the
previous student who testified. That is always probably going
to be an impossible thing. College students are going to want
to be treated similarly. I personally feel that trying to
treat them differently is always going to be a less than
perfect solution.

I agree with the previous people who have testified
who have indicated that the problem really isn't so much what
 this Committee can further legislate. You have already made
drinking in New Jersey —— and elsewhere in the country -- under
21 illegal. There 1is no further regulation of that. In my
"_oplnlon, it is really a question of enforcement. o

I want to address myself to what has occurred in the
past in my fraternity. I think one of the previous witnesses
mentioned an installation. There is no question that prior to
1984, there was a feeling, at least in Alpha Chi Rho, that as
long as you drank in a fraternity house and you didn't create
an outrageous party and you didn't try to hurt people —-- that
if you drank in the fraternity house, you weren't going to harm
anyone. At least, as of 1984, the Fraternity of Alpha Chi Rho
‘made a very conscious effort to recognize that this was a
double standard; that drinking under the age of 21 was 1illegal
in every state in which we have chapters, and as a fraternity
we could not turn a blind eye to this. We could not adopt a
double standard. We had to start taking measures to educate
our chépters to the fact that drinking by people under 21 was
illegal.
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v We pursued a very agdressive Alcohol Awareness Program
within our fraternity, 'such things:as prohibiting open:.parties,.
making:..surees that -where. alcohol .:is: served, . I.Dus hhave - toitbe
chedked: - and:-stamped::.ien: people’'s ¢ handsi t:Atsc parties owhere
alcohol: is served, :we .insist that. alternative :beverages and
food be served. We insist that any party. where alcohol is
served-— We established sobriety patrols —-—- we call them in
our fraternity -- because we think it is important to—-— You
just can't pass rules; you have to enforce them. What we try
to do in our fréternity is make our chapter leaders responsible
for the enforcement and the following of those guidelines we
put up. |

Obviously, the death of James Callahan was a very
tragic event. I also think that if James Callahan had died
after an evening of drinking in his buddy's dorm room, none of
us in this room would have probably heard about it. It
happened in .the fraternity. That is why it got publicity.
Fraternities have the responsibility, because we are basically
organized for social purposes. We also emphasize charitable
events and sporting events, but college fraternities do
organize themselves for social purposes. »

I think the recurring trend I hear ‘among ‘these
witnesses 1s, there has to be some sort of mandatory
educational program on our college campuses. Back in the '50s,
college administrators exercised a great deal of contrcl over
students' social lives. But times change. In the ;60s? most
of those rules were done away with, and they are not going to
come back. My personal opinion is that in a very real sense,
the fraternities and the sororities on campus are the only
groups left that are even trying to impose social controls.
That is why I firmly believe that fraternities and sororities
have to be a part of the solution. Frankly, I think we have
been the most effective communicator of Alcohol Awareness

Programs on campus in the last few years.
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- In additon to imposing mandatory educational programs
in New -Jersey for:-.college students, I certainly think that a
required:uform:of -photo -identificationm.:thati.is wuniform. is
something ~the ZLiegislature can~look atw:dcThe mostiowes can do:is
askpeople: to-previde-proof:iof their agerrbuti-if that:proof :=is
altered. —-and it is well-known that proofs are- tough to rely
upon -- it makes it difficult to police.

I think the third circumstance is the fact that
obviously drinking is a problem that extends beyond college -
fraternities. At 1least from Alpha Chi Rho's point of view, we
try to provide social activity that doesn't include drinking.
Our rush programs are dry rush. We try to eliminate alcohol in
our pledging. But we are organized for social purposes. At
least we have an organization where we say, "Well, if we are
going to de-emphasize alcohol, we are in a position to provide

social programs that are an alternative.” What I kept hearing.
from a lot of the other students who testified who were not
- members of a fraternity, was that if you don't drink, you have
no place else to go.on campus. I think that is a very real
problém that collége administrations are gding to héve to
address. If you want to eliminate drinking on your college
campus, you are going to have to provide real concrete
alternative social programs, and that 1is something that
colleges have just not done at all. ' ‘

So, my recommendations, as I indicated, are, I think
mandatory educational programs are a factor. You've got to get
the facts in front of these people. I think required photo
identification that is uniform throughout the State is
something that would be very‘helpful in letting us police our
own activities. And again, creating on college campuses an
alternative social activity is, I think, the key, because you
are never going to get rid of-- As long as you keep the
drinking age of 21 —- and there is no expectation that that is
going to change —— you have to recognize that you are creating
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an artificial situation on college campuses. You are dealing
with two' classes of college: students, and . that is' something
that .isigoing:to.be wery, very+-difficult to- address.. ‘The.only
way to :address it..is’®by providing-alternatives.~:: we can 3o i
2z =0 ASSEMBLYMAN (=VIELLANE::: I:.have one question  for -you.
You mentiened that there is a dual standard when we talk about
college drinking and non-college drinking. What do you think
about that? What do you mean by that?

MR. 'CASTIGLIA: I certainly would say, being very
candid, that in my own fraternity, certainly up until 1984,
there was a sense among our chapters that, you know, even
though we knew it was 1illegal-— We may not have Xknown the
specific penalties, but we certainly knew it was illegal. We
felt that as long as we did it in our own fraternity house, we
would somehow be immune from the law. §

I can direct this Committee's efforts to what the
- State of Pennsylvania has done. Until a short time ago,
enforcement of liquor control laws in the State of Pénnsylvania
was left to the LCB boards. From my own personal experience --
I went to college in Pennsylvania -- the attitude of the LCB
board enforcement people was that as long as you didn't create’
a public problem, especially if you didn't invite townie people
into your parties, they were not concerned that underage
drinking was going on. The State of Pennsylvania has
recognized that lax enforcement problem, and the laws in the
State of Pennsylvania today are the responsibility of the State
Police. The State Police have used the policy of undercover
informants to try to enforce the liquor control laws. Although
you may agree or disagree on the appropriateness of that
policy, the threat that one of these students -- any student
coming into your party could be an undercover agent for  the
State Police, has, in my fraternity's experience, drastically
changed our chapter's drinking habits within the State of

Pennsylvania.
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Education is part of it,  and that I understand. The
enforcement _is::not:your. Committee's. responsibility.._ However, I
basically; Believe ‘that-"you~are hot "goingito--get:=<a handle..on
this iproblemmuntil lenforgcement "is’ strengthened.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Very:=good: -~.Thank: youw wery
much. There is..one. thing: If there is a dual standard about
the enforcement of the drinking age, it is a dual standard in
favor of the colleges. I will submit to you that we are
beginning to find out that the standard is not enforced by the
local cops, who say if it is a college problem, let the college
take care of it. And the.colleges are taking care of it in the
least onerous way -— a slap on the wrist, a warning. If there
is a double standard, it is a double standard as applies to the
college. ) |

MR. CASTIGLIA: I agree. I was very impressed with
the testimony of the student from Stevens Institute, who
indicated that his campus administration is very deeply and
actively involved 1in alcohol abuse and enforcing their
-reéulations, . In my experience, speaking for the chapters --
the colleges where we have chapters out — that is an
exception, that kind of administrative problem.

' ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Any questions, Mr. Spadoro, Mr.
Duch? (no response) Thank you very much.

May I hear from Ms. Cindy Chalson, Eastern Province

Alumni Chairman, Delta Gamma Sorority? ]
. CINDY CHALSON: I thank you very much. As a parent
of a college freshman, as the Province Alumni Chairman for
Delta Gamma for the entire East Coast, and as a resident of
Middlesex County in New Jersey, I am delighted, for the first
time in six weeks, to have a chance to address publicly the
fact that Greeks are not all they appear in the néwspaper, and
headlines and quotes are not necessarily as they appear. It
has been a very, very difficult six weeks for me, for anyone
who wears my badge across the world, and for all of my fellow
Greeks. I am delighted that I was asked to speak here.
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On the table in front of me —-- before I begin -- I
have three things I would like to be entered as exhibitions, if
we could, please. One is a tape called "Options," which is on
300 college campuses. It is, of itself, a very small part of a
very strong Alcohol Awareness Program developed by Delta Gamma,
supplied to 300 college campuses. It has been on and in the
Dean of Fraternities and Sororities' office at Rutgers
University for two or three years.

Another is article 2 of the Delta Gamma Constitution,
which speaks of the object of our being as a Greek fraternal
group. The third thing is a letter to Dr. Paul Leath, who is
the Provost of Rutgers University, listing the intrinsic value,
not only of Delta Gamma—— As I speak here today -- and I am
sure that those groups who differ from what I am going to say
will let you know —— 1I.speak, yes, as a Delta Gamma, but I
think I represent many other strong fraternal groups in the
United States and around the world.

I would 1like to say, first of all, that we are in
total concert with the ideals, the philosophies, the academic
and spirifual goals of any university in the United States. We
are- a small group there- to enhance the ~academic, spiritual,
philosophical, and cultural events of any student body. My
particular group has 120 collegian chapters around the world,
and 300 alumni groups. To be perfectly honest, most of our
problems have occurred here on the East Coast. I believe that
part of the reason is that in many other areas of the country,
there are strong university regulations which mandate student
behavior of all kinds, not only of Greeks.

When we, as an organization, are placed in a
laissez-faire environment, it makes our job that much more
difficult. My particular sorority has had a no drinking policy
for collegians and alumni for three years. At Alumni Founder's
Day celebrations, previous to three years ago, I will admit we
used to have wine. We no longer do that for people over 21
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years old. We mandate and enforce that any collegiate, or any
activityat:.all, -collegiate’ or not,:. in the:name of Delta Gamma
cannot::-provide-~alcohol : to: their .. participants:;:thereof.. :Why?
I_fi"-abi'l'i;t:y—-;:? Fr=as<-an officer, ram ikiablte.: I;..as.:a:parent, - am
liable: ~~It ‘can"be done; :and:it..can . .be. done with the group
still existing. - Tl _

I would like to address two other issues, and then I
will —- unl'ike my collegian counterparts —-- be very brief. I
am concerned with two different things. First of all, I do
have specific recommendations on what this Council and a
university can do to make our lives easier. Secondly, you,
sir, mentioned previously, that the possibility does exist for
kicking -all Greek groups off campus. I 'don',t know. Possibly
the Legislature is considering ridding the State of all Greek
groups. I see three things happening if that occurs. First--

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Let me just tell you, that is
not--— : ‘
MS. CHALSON: It's not?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE That has never been mentioned.
It ‘has been mentioned . by one university that they thought that
might be a possibility. It is not the intention of this
panel. I, as the Chair, see a great deal of good being
promoted through the Greek organizations. It really is the
brotherhood and sisterhood--

~ MS. CHALSON: Thank you. I think there would be a
"problem with the amendments to the Constitution, number one,
Four and Fourteen specifically. But I do see a number of
things happening if Rutgers asks its Greeks to leave.

Number one, private groups'meeting peaceably, by the
Constitution of the United States, cannot be disbanded. So, by
taking them off campus, what you would be doing, would be
asking .them to go sub rosa, or turn into bodies which are not
- governed by a strong alumni, by sessions for pledge education
and seminars, and all of these things which we have worked so
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very hard to do. You are taking the adult influence away, and
I think. we have all . agreed téday.that if anything, the alumni
and-the adult:influence:is more._important.than ever. : ... Ry
idamit iiTviAdult. supervisioncsry- absoluteély necessary; »na: doubt
dbout 'it. "-You:know what:.it=i§ like,:ini:timeslike today, when
we are all working, as am I, and you have to give up four or
five hours every evening during the week to supervise a Greek
event. It's not pleasant, but it can be done, and it could be
mandated.

‘ Any group that can't meet any university requirements
is only going to hurt the rest of the Greeks and the rest of
society. @We will punish our own, and ask to have a chapter
taken off a college campus, hopefully before the college campus
ever finds a problem with it, because they are representing us.

I have the following suggestions which may be
suggested to universities to help the situation: A mandatory
house director living in a house. This is executive policy for
Delta Gamma. It is mandated on every college campus in every
place. At Rutgers University, our group had to apply for a
waiver not to have one, and it was grantéd. Why? Because no
other group at Rutgers had one. How could we ask our girls to
live with one, if no one else on campus was required to have
one? .
' I think official housing on campus would help;
official Rutgers-owned housing, that could be supervised, as
the dormitories and as everything else. One =zoning, one
overall law for all students living in housing.

I think it may be very helpful to contact presidents
of other universities. There is a gentleman by the name of Mr.
Paul Pearson, who 1is now president of Miaml University 1in
Oxford, Ohio, on whose campus the Greeks and the student body
and the university work together as a beautiful cohesive whole,
not at each other's throats, but for the benefit of the student
body, one and a whole. Dr. Pearson was president of Rutgers
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University, previous to going to Miami of Ohio. 1I'll bet that
what he has to.say,. as::far as why-was New Jersey different,. .why
were things - here::different, =versus..what’' he -is: experiencing
now—-— I rawould sikove i torinhear -howirthei-feeltsszitrvis iwhandled
differentlyl',-_ Toeew whaET 3 LE 110, inmo Lamnzn PiT Uodu, .

A -gentleman by the name of:Keith ‘H. Brody, president
of Duke University——  They also have Greek housing. Yes, they
have problems. But, once again, they seem to work hand in hand
—— the Greeks and the social 1life of the students and the
university. Northwestern University is another prime example
of housing owned by the university, all students, therefore,
being under the regulations of the university.

I think also something that has not been done is-- If
I as a Norwegian have a fault or a flaw, that does not mean
that all Norwegians have that flaw. From what I have seen of
the public view of the Greeks, one mistake in one place on one
campus, and the Greeks only, and in total, have been blamed for
that one mistake. Now, maybe because we chose to be members of
fraternal organizations, we opened ourselves up for -that, but
neither the parents of my collegians nor my peers and alumni -
have anywhere had anyone stand up and say, "This is not true,
and it will not happen to your child."” A

I thank you. I could go on forever and ever. I wish
to keep it short. If there are any questlons, I would be more
than happy to answer them.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Thank you wvery much, Ms.
Chalson. It's nice to hear that you are Norwegian, because
there aren't many of us around. Does any member of the

Committee have a question? (no response) Thank you very much.

The next witness will be Mr. Bayard M. Graf.
BAYARD M. GRAF: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am
Bayard Graf, a member of the Phi Kappa Psi Fraternity; attorney
general presently, and have been that for six years.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED:. I -wasn't. even close on your
name, I'M: SOEry::--7 = 7 Lisn il 0y el aaee alel W4 g .
oo i MRe GRAF: iiIm=Phil;Kappa-.Psiyi.we ‘haves 97- chaptens;
three of: whichiaﬁeu&ooatednhereuﬁulxNewLJerseym, New rJersey
Alphi is at Rider College; New Jersey Bata is at Monmouth
College; New Jersey CGamma is at Rutgers University; and we have
a new colony, New Jersey Delta at Trenton State.

I would like to start out with the language that was
used ‘by President Edward Bloustein at the time of the death of
the freshman, James Callahan. He concluded his statement
following the death, "Laws, rules, regulations, and policies
are very important, but they alone are not sufficient to
eliminate harm and risk. This tragic loss of young life, and
the lifelong effects that this eveht will cause for all of us
immediately connected with 1it, demonstrate so «clearly the
absolute need for all of us to see how our own behavior can
contribute to a more supportive and productive environment. It
is in the context of grief that we must turn our attentions to
achieving the goal of a caring community.' ,

Phl Kappa Psi would concur that it doesn t make any
difference what laws. I think we have seen today. You have
questioned the enforcement of the laws which already exist .on
the books of the State of New Jersey, and the young people who
have been before you did not know what those laws were. They
did not know what penalties they would have to pay 1if they
violated those laws. But, more particularly, I would 1like to
read the resolution of the National InteréFraternity
Conference. ‘Mr. Alter was here representing them.

This was a resolution adopted in December, 1983,
unanimously, and it has been adopted by our fraternity -— the
Phi Kappa Psi Fraternity:

"WHEREAS, the NIC House of Delegates and its member
fraternities are concerned about increasing consumption and

abuse of alcoholic beverages on college campuses, and

93




"WHEREAS, the dangers .of misuse of alcohol to
‘individuals; ~to groups, to fraternity systems, and to the
campus community &re becoming increasingly evident, -and:u:wii=i=

sL "WHEREAS;rsan~-affirmative iprdagram-istoii:deal iwith=:the
problems. . will ©only: be-effective--by common*consent and *unified
action, ce e L aToLmemel ninioeesooes R

"NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by +the National
Inter-Fraternity Council, that the following policies be
adopted and .be recommended to its member organizations for
their adoption:

"1)  That the possession, use, sale, and/or
consumption of alcoholic beverages on the premises of any
chapter, or at any entertainment or function of any chapter,
shall be in compliance with all applicable laws;

- "2) That moderation be encouraged during - lawful
consumption, and that chapters develop and support programs and
those groups and organizations seeking to educate chapters on
alcohol awareness;

‘ "3) - That open parties, meaning those with
unrestricted access, where structured around the sale or
consumption of alcoholic beverages, shall be prohibited; ‘
, "4) That nonalcoholic rush shall be actively promoted
on all campuses; |

“5)  That there shall be no open solicitation or
encouragement of alcoholic consumption by contests or promotion
in any chapter." ’

Those, Mr. Chairman, are the principles which I would
urge this Committee to recommend to the General Assembly of the
State of New Jersey, for incorporation in the 1laws of this
State. Now, of course, they will have to be modified —- will
have to be changed, in order to meet the needs and the true
legislative standards which should be . adopted. But,
interestingly enough, I, myself, was at Cornell this past fall,
when I attended an Alcohol Abuse Seminar. One of the documents
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that was handed out to us said: "One 1in 10 drinkers will
develop an alcochol problem, and one-half. of all of them will .do
so before .they  are ..25.-years..of::agei¥ Thiswasda program
presented atirthe'DistrictiCouncilvmeeting .of aur :fraternity, +of
which there :are:'six :throughout-the-country. - This was presented
by Randy Seott Stevens, Assistant Dean of Fraternities and
Sororities at Cornell. Here is a substantial packet that was
distributed to all of our members who attended, three of whom
were from Rutgers.

I think the sum and substance of what I'm saying is,
it comes -- and it has already been said many times today --
from education. The universities themselves, located in New
Jersey and elsewhere, are going to. have to educate. Students
are not ~going to come voluntarily to be educated on these
particular principles. It must be —— if you will excuse the
‘expression —-- jammed down their throats, so they are made
aware, and so that when the Chairman asks students, "What is
the penalty for failure to comply?" they will know. I would
suggest to this Committee that perhaps maybe the education laws
ought to be amended, in order to mandate that at all the
colleges:and universities throughout the State of New Jersey,
there be an Alcohol Abuse Program. '

It is not going to occur once. These boys -went to
Cornell one time. They will never return, and there will never
be another Alcohol Abuse Program given by our fraternity to
them. They've had it. When this will occur again, nobody
knows. But, on the other hand, if this Committee recommends
adoption of 1legislation that requires the wuniversities and
colleges within the State of New Jersey to make sure that the
students are aware, I think you will have gone a long way.

Thank you very much. '

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Thank you  very much. May we
have a copy of that resolution for the record?

MR. GRAF: Yes, I will give it to you right now.
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ASSEMBLYMAN_ SHUSTED: - Is there any member of the
Committee ‘who -has: a:question. for .Mr:.. Graf? .Yes:;: Assemblywoman

Farragher? oiowy =i Do Jlorl LD ZETLT Thiz oo 20 mrogram
uuﬂhﬁuuﬂQSSEMB§¥WOMAN?E%RRAGHER::xﬁustjzﬁfcomment=wxvualgoh®1
abuse education at- the . college.:levelz - I think ‘that - isteo
late. It is just my personal . opinion, but I think it is too
late.

MR. GRAF: Too late? 1It's never too late. It should
be continuing.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Oh, I agree that it is never
too late, but I believe it has to start much younger. By the
time they reach college, they should already be aware.

MR. GRAF: Well, you're probably right, but how are we
going to do that? ' _

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Well, I don't know. I also
serve on the Select Committee for Drug Abuse} and I know we are
considering some legislation right now that would set up an
alliance for prevention in the State of New Jersey, which wculd
be a model for the rest of the country, if we can ever finish
'getting it all together. _ . o
| MR. GRAF: No doubt about it. I remember one time,
- when my children were in high school, we had people come before
us who said, "Look, this drug problem and alcohol problem 1is
going to start in junior high school." We were amazed.

' ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: It already has; I might say,
it already has. I can tell you that I am aware of children who
have even begun abusing as young as nine and ten years old.

MR. GRAF: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: I noticed also that Mr. Richard,
from your fraternity, was here. _ '

MR. GRAF: It was here, Mr. Chairman, but we are about
to start a new chapter up at Brandeis University in New England
and, unfortunately, that 1is today, and he had to go. So, he's
gone. '
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Well, send him our best regards.
_-MR.. GRAF: I will. Thank you,.sir. ... s
.o ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: The next witness we will hear

REE RS o FrrrTII Y T ~ o e I
[P R A ~ PPN S R R S LA [ O TN AV RN

from is MG Dale SlavinsKin-icring:
D" A-<L :Eux=8.L AUVCIo N-S§S'KiwIl:'2Gdod aftetnodn.:tidr am.. Dale
Slavinski, Executive Director. ofzTheta Chi Fraternity.' I am a

1968 graduate of Duke University, which had a very strong Greek
system. We are the -only national fraternity with our
headquarters here in Trenton, so I didn't have too far to
travel to come to this hearing today.

We all share in the tragedy of the death of James
Callahan. All fraternities have been affected by it. In my
travels around‘ the country since that time, it 1is just
incredible the amount of publicityAthat death has gotten, not
only .in the fraternity world, but also among parents of
undergraduates, and undergraduates in general.

We all, as national organizations, are working very
hard to overcome the party image that I think perhaps we gaiﬁed
in the 1970s, through our educational conferences and
conventions, and thfough our'inrer—fréternal associations. I
have a number of resolutions; the one Mr. Graf just read is one’
of them. There are a number of resolutions against hazing and
alcohol abuse, which my fraternity, the National
Inter-Fraternity Conference, and the Fraternity Executives
Association have published. I would like to leave those with
-you, if I may, as well as some alcohol and hazing programs we
have introduced at our leadership conferences, just to give you
an idea of the kind of work we are doing in that area.

It has become more apparent in our inter—-fraternal
meetings —— and I am talking about the Fraternity Executives
Association in particular —— the need to get back to stressing
values and ethics to our members. This has been something that
I think we let slip by in the '70s and early '80s, and we are
now focusing a lot of our attention on that -- getting back to
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our true meanings as fraternal organizations, and getting. back
to the meaning of our .rituals..: I think that once we start
developing:-programs -in-this'area,”"it will cértainly-:filter down
taaursstudent: members: <k

T 7. 7. -The-Natienal Inter=Fraternity :Conference..has .set: up:a
Values and Ethics Committee, which is continuing to work and
has put out a number of good articles, one of which 1s in a
magazine of another national fraternity, Phi Kappa Psi, which I
will leave with you. It is called, "We Are Prepared," getting
back to the true purpose of our organizations.

I, too, think that education 1is a key. The one
problem I see with our educational programs is that they are
only reaching a 1limited number of our members at our
conferences and conventions. Quite honestly, sometimes the
members who most need to be presented with some of these
programs, do not attend these conferences and conventions. So
we have to rely, to some extent, on the local college community
fb educate in the area of alcohol abuse.

I would be happy to entertain any questlons _

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: I would 1like to ]ust ask one
question. What kind of a rapport do you have, or do your
fraternities have with the various administrations on campus?
We're talking now about informing your members 1in the 1local
houses about the laws, we'll say in New Jersey particularly.
Do you promulgate to each house the laws as they may relate to
alcohol abuse?

MR. SLAVINSKI: Since we are represented in almost
every state in the Union, we do not go to each chapter and say,
"The law states that this, this, this could happen to you,"

because it does vary in the different states. We certainly
make them aware. We really approach it from the 1liability
issue. We find that that scares them and makes them pay

attention. That is really how we make them aware of the laws
against drinking.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: How about on the cr1m1na1 side
- the criminal: penalties they may incur for violations?
© ... Z.7i'MRi SLAVINSKI: r:rYes, they are-made..awaré of those. ..
oo our o'ASSEMBLYMAN- SHUSTED: You talked about liability. I
assume you-are’ referrlng'to givil-liability.=v=oo. nng 20T
MR. - SLAVINSKI: . ~Personal -liability ' -and . criminal
liability, yes. In fact, we have four attorneys on our
national board, and they delight in giving these sessions at
our regional and national conferences. It is a good attention
getter for the students. Our national vice president does a
program, which 1is <called, "Hazing on Trial." He 1is a
prosecuting attorney, and he goes through the whole gamut of
what would happen to you if you were a chapter president and
there was a hazing death in your chapter, and how you would be
treated by the law. It is an eye-opening experience. v
~  ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Thank you véry much, Mr.
Slavinski.
| The next witness we will hear from is Mr. Don Stohl,
Executive Director of Kappa Delta Rho Fraternity, if he is
here. (no response) Mr. Tom Phillips? (no response) Brian
Guest? (affirmative response)
BRIAN M, G UE S T: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am the
President of the Alumni Board of the Rutgers Chapter of Sigma
Phi Epsilon Fraternity. I will try to keep my remarks brief.
The day has gotten long for all of you, I'm sure.
I certalnly agree with the comments I have heard about
the need for stricter enforcement. I agree with the comments I
have heard about the need for greater education. I think, in a
large part, we are dealing with the problem of ignorance; not
just ignorance of the law and its implicatlions, but ignorance
bof the problems of alcohol abuse. I also agree with the
comments I have heard that education has to start at a much
younger age than college age, to really be truly effective.
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One area I don't think has been much emphasized, 1is
the need —.for :runiversity... regulation © and:' ‘a-- cooperative
relationship between:.local::alumni. boards:-and -the university. I
do not thinkithat  exists at Rutgers: .University. "1 Irthink we
havesanadministrationr ‘there :that:zdoesv.not appreciate the
merits of:.-the: .Greek:: system. ~After “the  'incident. with. Mr:
Callahan, we had a university president who called fraternities
"centers of abhorrent behavior." .

I have, over a number of years, attempted to get the
deaﬁ of fraternities and sororities at Rutgers to send copies
to me of the various directives and rules and notices that are
being sent to our undergraduates, contemporaneously with those
notices. I was told in response that there are 40 different
fraternities at Rutgers, and that the-postage costs were not in
their budget. It is difficult to deal with these problems,
when that is the attitude I, as a president of an alumni board,
see. :

Two and a half years ago, our particular chapter at
Rutgers received a letter from the dean of students threatening
us with social prbbation, because some of our members were out
raising funds by selling risque posters on street corners;
risque posters that were purchased at the University Book
Store. And yet, the only education on alcohol awareness that I
see in our chapter at Rutgers University, 1is that which 1is
provided by our national and our alumni board. We have a
_-30-minute videotape that our national fraterﬁity produced on
alcohol problems and 1liability. It largely emphasizes civil
liability, as opposed to criminal liability, but criminal
liability is included in that. We have made that a mandatory
part of our Pledge Education Program. It has been so for some
three years now.

These are very serious problems. Something 1like what
happened to James Callahan reflects on all of us. I think
alcohol abuse is pervasive in our society. It is far beyond
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fraternities; it is even far -beyond college. campuses._.I do
believe that:-educatiom -is:-the:-ultimate: answer +— perhaps 'not
the ~ultimate answer., but-lan:ultimate::requirement::to-reach an

attitudes overnight, and we:-are certainly:not going to:be" able
to change them by closing down fraternities or - just passing
regulation upon regulation, when —- as you have heard here this
morning —— the attitude of students is that they are going to
drink anyway. _

We have done a lot of things in our chapter to try to
control alcohol abuse. We have used closed parties; checked
I.D.s. We have party staffs that are specifically assigned to
observe the attendees and ask anyone who 1is disruptive or
clearly drinking too much alcohol to leave the party. We
provide them with transportation, if they need it to get to
where they came from. Many, many such things can be done to
aid the situation. We try to have alumni present as much as
possible at parties, but we are dealing with volunteers on the
alumni board, and it is difficult to cover every situation. 7

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: = You said you do not .experience
too good a rapport with some of the  executive 1level at
Rutgers. Do you know whether or not other fraternities have
had similar experiences? | ,

MR. GUEST: I have heard, thirdhand, that some other
fraternities have had those kinds of experiences.

ASSEMBLYMAN  SHUSTED: But you don't know that
firsthand?

MR. GUEST: I don't know it firsthand; no, I do not.
I, personally, for quite some time, have been very dissatisfied
with the 1level of communication and cooperation between the
university administration and the fraternities. It is my
feeling that we should be on the same side of issues like this;
that we should be cooperating in solving the problem. It is
simply not the perception I am receiving in my position —-- that
there is a feeling of cooperation.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Have you noticed any change
since the death of Mr. Callahan? - - ' hy
m=aoaiis o MRLs GUEST:C . Lo.don't Kknow. :that:there. has been -enough
time - for: méito hotice <changei-:; F~had -e'-luncheéonrwith:Dean
Leonardson ~the:: Monday:-after :: Mr.-:€allahan's:z death; iwhich .had
been previously scheduled at my request,-.to discuss. some- of
these communication problems. Unfortunately, with that on our
minds, we didn't much discuss the communication‘problems, as we
did the problems with Mr. Callahan.

I might point out that in that discussion, I raised
the question of the fact that Rutgers has a Center for Alcohol
Studies of some good repute. I asked if they had available to
us -— to be used by us in educating our members -- any
resources for alcohol awareness education and the like. I was
told -- and I was speaking to the man who was in charge of
fraternities at Rutgers —-— that he was unaware of whether they
had any such information or not. I share Dr. Villane's
frustration. This, to me, is not an active alcohol awareness
policy when, you know, I can sit as the president of an alumni
corporation, and not receive information from the university on
what that policy 1is; when I can ask the dean in charge of
fraternities and sororities whether there are programs or
resources available I can use in my fraternity, or in my pledge
program, and receive an answer that he doesn't know. Where is
the program? It strikes me that that is one of the things this
Committee should address. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Thank you very much. Are there
any questions? -

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: I am very distressed to hear
your comments about the relationship between the dean and
yourself, because, just from a practical standpoint, it would
seem to me that that is where direction should be coming from.
The types of things you are looking for should be coming from
there. 1If they are not coming from there-— I am not a regqular
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" member of this Committee -— I am. substituting today -- but I
would hope,--Mr. -‘Chairman, :that the regular members of the
Committee *will" take that::into.:consideration,.: and- perhaps:make
some !very@estrong;zSuggeétiqns to iithe« Rutgersn» staff oo+
ddministrative: staff people =——ithat they::need tOBCiéanﬁup&theiﬁ
act before they start throwing stones at the fraternities.

MR. GUEST: I want to make it eclear that I am not here
to accuse any individuals of failures, but I really think that
the individuals that are in these positions are not necessarily
the ones who are directing dealing -- who are in the Office of
Fraternity and Sorority Affairs that I have had personal
contact with. It is not that I am being ignored in the sense
that they don't want to deal with me. My impression is that
they do not have the resources avaiiable; that they are not
being supported by the higher echelons of their administration.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: My problem, I gduess to
define it more clearly, is, they should be demanding the
resources at this point.

MR. GUEST: That is my feeling.

' ASSEMBLYWOMAN FARRAGHER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Mr. Duch, do you have any
questions? '

ASSEMBLYMAN DUCH: No, I do not. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Thank you very much, sir.

MR. GUEST: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: The next witness we will hear
from is Mr. Vincent LeBlon.

VINUCENT L e BL O N: Good afternoon. My name 1is
Vincent LeBlon. I am the Pfesident of the Alpha Rho Alumni
Association, which is the alumni fraternity corporation for the
Chi Psi Fraternity organization at Rutgers University. With me
is Michael Cialussi (phonetic spelling), who is a member of our
national fraternity educational -- the Chi Psi Educational
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Trust, which is a educational trust the fraternity established
years ago;-.which prowides..an: educational: program,..and such,
many..areas,~ and whieh has.done.work:on -this subject.zzrhzps move
sowe  vedv suppese iaitdallyrnzjusts tahodeviateo:fromtwhat T
originally: planned: towusay: I- differ,.:..T think;: ffem:the ‘wview
that has been-presented by some. of the members of fraternities
and alumni corporations that have appeared that there 1is a
great problem with the university's administration in terms of
dealing with the alcohol problem at the university. I have a
very good relationship with the dean and the administrative
staff overall, not specifically on the alcohol policy. But I
think you' have to put into context the problem that has been
existing and the way in which the university can deal with it.
I think the two individuals from the national fraternity and
the sorority who have indicated that they have programs, but
maybe they didn't get support from the university-- It is a
tragedy that they didn't get the assistance they looked for,
but overall the university was faced with a situation where
they had to deal with a change in the law allowing 18-year-olds
to drink, now going to 21—yeér—olds. I think they would have
very much been in favor of simply saying, "No more.drink_ing at;
Rutgers,"” eliminating it altogether, but they were not in a
position to enforce a policy 1like that given the budgetary
constraints, or whatever —— public sentiment. I don't know. I
think even, maybe not the groups who are here today, because
they are the ones who are concerned about this problem, but the
groups— The number of other groups that are not present
today, are the ones who would have resisted that type of
change; would have resisted the university in the types of
changes they would have liked to implement.

"I don't know what their overall alcohol educational
program was, but I know what the sentiments of the deans
were—— I know one particular dean, when he came into office
- there —— because he was new to it a coupie of years ago -- came

104




onto campus and found himself driving down College Avenue.. He
had~the~sunaroof~offhiSscar:open+”and_he had .a. beer tossed in
on:top:of him:: =*So,;~he :is:very:much::aware of.the. problem with
alcohol arnd the.typesirof ithings ‘that are ‘cecurring:on campus.
Iuknpw;he;haSZtried very-hard ‘toldealrwith 1ti-'t. from tho iow
.So, I -do" not-agree totally with the..sentiment:that ‘the
university 1is at fault. I want to present you With-my own
perception of the'.problem, I suppose. I do believe that a
problem does exist. I don't know that it is any dgreater than
the problem that exists in society in general. I guess I would
concur with a lot of the other witnesses in that regard. I,
however, believe I have seen a change over the past five to ten
years, ‘again considering the change in the legal drinking age;
improvement on campus in terms of the extent of the problem the
university has had to deal with. I think there has been
improvement. ‘ ' '
7 Just to give ybu a little bit of my background, I
suppose I got reinvolved. I graduated in 1977, and became
reinvolved with the fraterhity in 1980. I have been the
'pfésident of the alumni corporation‘for, I suppose, three or
four years now, so I have been able to see a change in
direction over the past couple of years, from really, I
suppose, irresponéible behavior in many instances to what I
consider more responsible behavior on the part of the
students. What is giving rise to that? I think one thing we
have done, which was practical, and I think that goes to the
Chairman's question which he posed to a number of the
witnesses, "Do we have to make the college students more aware
of the penalties?" I think you do. I can see one result in
what we have been doing. That  was instructing the
undergraduates on the liability problems that can be incurred
with any type of behavior, including alcohol. Given the
insurance crisis we were- suffering a couple of years ago, we
started having an alumni who 1is an attorney go down to the
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fraternity house and tell the fellows that there are a number
of -different . legal ‘ramifications- that: are :going to affect. you,
possibly..dffect your. family, vand possibly result-Tin .the:'loss. of.
the -fraternity..house:: JI:i think>I have seen arwvery: . good:.response
from:the feéellows ta that type of a program. >.+.

Was it -a "Scared -Straight" type of program, where you
told them they were going to lose everything'they owned because
of it? To some extent, it was. I think, Mr. Chairman, if you
do make that type of information available to the students, it
will have .-an effect on them,. because it did in the instance we
had. It wasn't simply limited to insurance, but it dealt with
alcohol and with every other type of activity that could result
in liability, and related, therefore, to the insurance issue.

' Also, the question of mandétory education-— I am
going to deter, for just a minute, to Mr. Cialussi, because he
has been very active with our fraternity in the area of our
fraternity's policies and education on alcohol. So, if I may?-
MICHAEL CIALTUSSI: Sure. One of the questions
we are often asked, as members of our national fraternity, is,
do you have a program in this, or a program in that? As a
person who has been invoived with the National C¢Chi Psi
Fraternity for a number of years, I am aware of what other
fraternities do and what their programs are 1like, as well as
what my own programs are like. As someone mentioned earlier,
we all know the wonderful programs Lambda Chi Alpha Fraternity
has vis-a-vis the information. They have done an excellent
job. In fact, some of the things they have were, indeed, taken
up by other national fraternities. ‘

Chi Psi uses alcohol education as a part of the total
educational program, but we don't necessarily have something we
can give you in a book that says, "This is our alcohol
education program." One of the reasons why we do not is
because we feel that any kind of program that we would support
has got to be more than just information. It has to be more
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than just scare tactics. We were interested in a program that
would wotk;x'I&thinkvthatvsome.of%my;COlleaguesﬁon-mY'national
feel ‘that. wé_want to Xry 'to arrive:.at:avbatance between igiving
undet@nadnatesfﬁhensense’that*therends»awrespoﬁsibilityewithout
Ascaringzthem;and;;afﬂthe;same%timequet,them understand that
this is not something they should -joke about. We don't want-a
program that is scoffed at either. I think the challenge for
the Committee, if I may, is to implement a policy or a program
that will merge the different sectors affecting 'the
undergraduate chapter houses. I don't think undergraduate
students are really aware, as‘much as they should be, of the
current laws which exist in our State. If we can make the
current laws, ©plus have continued. cooperation with the
administrations of our colleges and Auniveréities, and also
involve the alumni, the way we have on our local level, and
other vblunteers, and bring them together in a partnership, I
think college students will understand.

_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You are kind of the interim age
group, I think. You know, we have some people who are
'presentiy'in fraternities. I guess ydu are both graddatés and
have been out for a number of years. '

MR. CIALUSSI: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It seems to me that the attitude
of the existing metriculating student, especially the young man
from Rider, is that whether we 1like it or not, alcohol is, and
always will be, a part of the fraternity scene, regardless of
the age. Do you think that is accurate?

MR. CIALUSSI: My response to that would be the
response that I heard alumni at Chi Psi say from the '20s,
'305, '40s, '50s, and '60s; that 1is, alcohol was around and, of
course, there was beer and that type of thing, but it was not
allowed in the fraternity house. There was a clear
understanding of what the law was. I think it 1is somewhat
understating the role, or the understanding that our current

107




college students will have. I think they will understand it.
I am .not sure he is . right. .. « __ L ooiioaimaze o s
finr oo ASSEMBLYMAN. VIELANE: =:No,. :I :am not-a:prohibitienist: :::

undorgr MR o<CIALUSSE: =<l '‘mmotiieithers & scsoonsthiliiy mttheut

soorinn ASSEMBEYMAN-*VIEEANE oo Andmayet)il iam.: appdliled ..at :the
prospect that i#f£:-you-’ are-—going to 'put }8-,-19-,-20-, 21—, and
22-year-old people together, all of them will drink, or will
have to drink. Is it possible to have a fraternity where the
senior brothers say, "You know, when you get to be 21, then you
will be able to drink like I do" or is it just a fact of life
that there is going to be drinking in a fraternity house at all
ages? . ‘ :
MR. DeBLON: I would venture the opinion that you can
have fraternity functions without alcohol. I think one of the
comments of one of the other speakers was that you have to give
alternatives. You have to provide them. . Maybe that is going
to be by funding to the universities and colleges for
alternative programs where students can spend their time. A
lot of times at Rutgers, they consider the weekends start on
Thursday night, and the students start to have their parties on
Thursday nights, Friday nights, and then they head home for
Saturday and Sunday. I think if there were some alternative on
Saturday and Sunday for them to stay on campus and enjoyv
themselves, that may not occur. But it may very well be a
matter of funding and a changing of attitudes. I think you are
seeing them.

Just so YOu understand my comment before, one reason
the understanding of the penalties would work, is that what I
see with college students today 1is that they are more
responsible, more job oriented.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I agree.

MR. DeBLON: When you tell them that their prospect of
obtaining a job —— a good job -—- when they get out of college
is going to be jeopardized by the fact that they have a
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criminal conviction, or have been. involved in _even an incident
like this,: I:-think- they :will think twice about it. They will
‘think more<thaty “twice :about: it;..afdd it..will have: :an effect on

them. M CIRLONSE 1w ool Cither.

ASSEMBLYMAN: VILLANE:: Oneioﬁtﬁhe;IemarKway?a”studentf
which was very well taken-- He said, "You know, if you close
down the pub—-" That was the reaction of the university when

we raised the drinking age. They said, "Rather than have the
hassle of sorting out who is 21 and who is not, let's close
down the pub." What it did was close down a facility where
there was an activity for a person to participate in. You
know, if there is no place to go, you hang out or go to a bar,
~or you hang out in your room and drink. That's a good point.
Maybe the ' universities ought to actively reinitiate the -
activities in"the pubs a little better and a little more
stringently. I think the Legislature has to be willing to
provide that kind of a facility; someplace where péople can go
to get together and socialize.

MR. DeBLON: I just have one further comment on the
question that was raised eaflier -— some of the questioning
about dual standards of enforcement.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes? ‘ ‘

MR. DeBLON: I think that does occur. I think, you
know, the students at Rutgers are insulated from the
enforcement of the laws for alcohol and drugs.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Do you think that 1lessens the
effect of a State law on a university student, if he thinks he
is insulated from the 1local cops, and that the campus police
will take care of 1it?

MR. DeBLON: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It does?

MR. DeBLON: I think it does. You know, a simple
answer to that would be simply to station a police officer on a
local college street every night, and ybu could confront those
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who appear to be drunk. I don't know that that is a solution.
I do make the . observation that it exists... I don't know that
the - solutiomis | really:iarresting zeveryone : who:.goes down::the
street drunk, and . pursuing that, because I would then have a
concern —-<:which:reallj Hashot ‘been:mentioned: =+« what: s doing
to be the effect on the universities and the_colleges if they
are forced to take on the role —-- or if there is an increased
presence of police on campus? Does it jeopardize the learning
atmosphere, and such? I don't know.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: If you are drunk and disorderly
in New Brunswick, you will probably get arrested. If you are
"drunk and disorderly on the campus of Rutgers, you will
probably get a slap on the wrist by the campus police.

MR. DeBLON: So that you can't get to drive home.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It is an interesting phenomena.
Is there anything else? Any questions from the panel? (no
response) Some of our members had to leéve, and I apologize.
But they put in a terribly difficult week. The legislators are
here three or four times a week, and I asked them to come one
extra time. So, some of them had other business commitménts.
But, thank you very much for being here. ,

MR. DeBLON: Thank you for the opportunity.

MR. CIALUSSI: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is Mr. Robert Bavender here?
(no response) How about Mr. Dan Davies? (affirmative response)
DANTIETL DAV IE S: Hi. I don't have a prepared
statement. I came not knowing what we were going to go into
exactly, although knowing very well what the topic is. I am
listed, I think, a little bit improperly, in that you 1list me
as representing the Rutgers Alumni Association. I represent
Zeta Psi Fraternity Alumni Association, from Rutgers.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We will correct that.

o MR. DAVIES: Okay. I won't go too much into where we
stand on all of this, because we stand where most fraternities
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stand; that 1is, we have good ‘policies, and we have good
educationalzpiograms~within*ourse1vestgrin fact, we show that
tape :which:was:.very:briefly:  mentioned::nf. the.vice_president :of
Theta:Chi gaingathrough:his hazing 'om: trial: -+ We:!show iti.every
semester to-'eveéry -iricoming pledge: classiy:i-and: it is:mandatory.:
So, everyone ‘gets -that - induction - of our policy of-where we
stand. It takes a 30-minute, or a 35-minute tape and turns it
into a two and a half hour knock down, drag out policy
statement from us directly to the people coming in before they
get a chance to be coerced, or--

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Intimidated.

MR. DAVIES: Right. It speaks to hazing, and it
speaks to alcohol use and abuse. § |

I might address, however, the university's stand on
the whole thing. I think their primary position is to protect
themselves, in that they—- A couple of years ago; they
required all of the fraternities to 1list them as additionally
iﬁsured on. our general 1liability policies for a million
dollars, which 1is not a problem for us. We are a good size
fraternity. We are strong; we‘éarried'that. We added them at
some considerable expense. It's not a big deal. It is a
harder thing for some other fraternities to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What policy was that? Was that
the liability policy?

MR. DAVIES: General liability, correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Rutgers asked that they be named
as someone else covered under your—-

MR. DAVIES: 'Additionally insured, correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Additionally insured, okay.
That's interesting. _

MR. DAVIES: I don't know how familiar you are with

the whole Lambda Chi incident. It is my understanding -- it's
hearsay, but it can probably be figured out factually from the
right sources -- that on their policy where they had to name
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Rutgers as additionally insured, they were not able -- or were
not desirous:of picking: wup: that. extra coverage —— it.is. quite.
expensive.i.——..and:. they.-either...indicated _that':they::had:rand
didn't Chioriugot iLituuwand.icahceled .it,..or’.something: of cthat:
nature.. That:-wholei:ban.on all‘serts.:of fraternitg activities
at Rutgers that came down after the death of James Callahan. was
not primarily as a result of the death of James Callahan, but
as a result of someone at Rutgers doing a little investigative
work and finding out that they were not covered by Lambda Chi.
Now, those facts can be found out, I'm sure. But it 1is a
little disturbing to me that the incident was not what caused
their concern; it was their own well-being.

It seems to me that what needsjtb come out of Rutgers
then, instead of ‘something that proteéts them, 1is something
that says, "You are incoming freshmen, and we understand that
you have been drinking. Everybody goes to a high school party
or two, and you drink at the prom. You drink wherever. Here
is our policy. We are going to train you with respect to what
the university policy is, with respect to what the State. law
is, 'with ‘respect to what the policies of any social
organization on campus is." Then they need to go further than
that. They need to require 1it. Instead of making it
available, they need to require it. Then they need to require
that the Jjurisdictions of all of the fraternities are trained
in also presenting that information, and are also required to
present that information, so that the incoming freshmen, the
sophomores, and all the people who are underage and not ailowed
to drink aren't just getting passive information; that they are
being required to know, and are being trained on the proper
rules and regulations and policies.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That 1is a very good suggestion,
and I thank you for it. I want to ask you a question, if you
would help me. What would happen if we made these things
clearer, and we said, "The rules at this college campus are
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that you do not drink if you are under 21, and hazing is not
permitted"? ~Then;-if~you~infbrmeduthe students, "If, -indeed,
¥ou-:are scaughti:drinking,z-.or-:at-:-aizparty proxiding:-drink for
someone else,;.you:iwill:be prosecuted . under sthecnlaws of the
8tate ~of New:Jersey.'u:What effect:would that chaverat.Rutgers;
or at other colleges? ... "7 ot ool 2F Tassa Toiienge was

MR. DAVIES: Well, let's éddress-hazing first. One of
the reasons we show this videotape every semester, which goes
through hazing on. trial, 1is that we are trying to get someone
who 1is being coerced to tell us, so that we can take action.
We are not very good policemen. However, we can do a lot when
we know what is happening. If someone who is being coerced to
drink, or who 1is being hazed, will come and tell us -- us
meaning the alumni, because we are certainly a different entity
than the active chapter -- then we can correct that situation.
Inasmuch as we have a policy that we don't haze, and we have a
policy that we don't drink underage, and we established that,
if no one tells us, or is willing to say that it is being
violated, then there is not a whole lot we can do about it.
.But'if we can educate people, require them to be educatéd as to
what the policy is, and then if we can get someone to feed back
to us that something to the contrary is happening, then perhaps
we can do something about it, at least in our instance.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank . you very . much. Any
questions? (no response) Thank you very much for staying all
day and giving us your information.

MR. DAVIES: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Ted Phelan, President,
Alumni Association Kappa Sigma, Rutgers University. I hope I
pronounced your name correctly.
TED PHEULAN: Yes, it's Phelan, as the Irish go.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Ted Phelan. I am
the President of the Board of Trustees for Kappa Sigma at
Rutgers. One of the things I would have to comment on is that
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alumni representation of Rutgers has probably been a:model of
some of the better houses on campus..:Our.leaders take pride-in
establishing poliecy :and: trylng to make::the others? follow:by the

1. - -~ -

standard we setycu Wili LG Loo3echioad under  rne laws o of o i

oz IN:alsor-ean. appeal from-a ‘proféssional standpoint=-to
the Assemblywoman regarding the difficulty we are having in the
education of not cnly alcohol, "but drug wuse. I, as a
professional working for a very large pharmaceutical
organization, am held with the responsibility of educating
physicians. I can tell you that you are probably as good as
~your last discussion. You are as good as the openness and the
amount of information they wish to obtain themselves. I think
we are also at risk, or at difficulty with that problem at the
university, with an age group where they are probably less
attentive and have more attending to their needs, than at an
older level, and a more professional level.

I am probably in an age group where I can. open myself
as a source for the grocup here. I am at a very close age to
“those who are undergraduates. I have also attained higher
education, and have also worked very diligently with the-Qroup.

Probably, as has been talked about before, education
is by far the most important thing. But, also, the positive
side of fraternities is something that has to be received very
well from the university standpoint. The university has to see
that there are positives to the use of the fraternal
organizations. I think until we do that, we are in a very
difficult situation. We need to receive each other and work
together. There are very many positives to a fraternity.
People have become quite successful due to these opportunities.

One of the things also, is that there needs to be a
publication of the positives, and not so much instilling of the
negatives. The positives probably outweigh the negatives ten
- to one, yet the negatives make the front page of the newspaper,
or sell someone's time on the six o'clock news, which, you
know, many of us take great pains to listen to.
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Also, as has been brought up, without a doubt, until
you have- other:ractivities  for university :students,:they. will
seek what'is most  easily accessible; what is- mosti.easys to dop
and :that s sa@lcohol. Until you provide things—- Rutgers, and
many of ‘the':-other State: institutions;-.are-"thought..of. as

"suitcase institutions," where on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday
it is time to go home, because there 1is nothing to do there.
It was thought of that way when I was an undergraduate, and it
is still thought of that way. Now, it makes it that much more
desirable to attend institutions outside the State of New
Jersey, because there are many other activities these students
can participate in. I have visited many institutions, and have
become familiar with that. It is preobably something that
suffers, because we have probably some of the best institutions
in this country, yet many of our problems are, as the fact
goes—— We need to nurture our students, as opposed to trying
to create an adversarial situation.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That 1is an interesting point you
bring up About,suitcase schools, and not keeping the students
on campus during the weekend. That's interesting, because, you
know, New Jersey 1is such a small State, you are so close to
home. There 1is nowhere you can go in the State that you are
not two hours away from your house. '

MR. PHELAN: Exactly.

ASSEMBLYMAN  VILLANE: What  happens in  the
Legislature-— Our attempt is to keep New Jersey students —-—
"qualified good students -— here in New Jersey. I guess that is
a very‘importént point, that theré is nothing to occupy them on
the weekend. , ’ .

At Rutgers, for instance, 1if you have a football.
weekend, isn't there something —— an activity like that -- that
keeps students on campus? ,

MR. PHELAN: I would say yes. I would say it would

probably be more if it were a major institution. I can tell
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you, I was a college athlete; I had many friends who were
college athletes...and are - now pro . athletes. : :When ~being
recruited, :there. is -no secret:_that »winning:.tathletic teams.,
whether: it ube ! footballu:or :baskethall;:=build ;flibraries,: -bu¥ld
institutionsd. <Sihor Otato institotioconn. ars thoundhi of s
‘raOnes0f+the~biggest-things?Wéisufférmin%theistate;is
really the activity, or the other activities to keep these
students in the State. I have seen it from my friends who have
‘left; from those who have gone on to be professional athletes.
There is great pride in the alumni and in alumni support at
many of the other institutions, where at Rutgers we suffer from
the fact that-- We could really nurture the fact, 1if it were
~ done ~properly from the university's standpoint, that the
strongest body they have for alumni aretthe Greeks. They are
in a difficult situation because they know that if they were to
create an adversarial situation with the alumni who are Greeks,
they would stand to lose a large amount of alumni support,
which, at this point in time, they cannot afford to lose.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Especially right now. _
MR. PHELAN: I agree with you 100%. I am there; I see
the problems. I am there probably more than any alumnus
because I work in close proximity, and also take the liability
very personally in the position I am in. I can tell you that
it is a painstaking effort to bring this to undergraduates on a
daily basis. The monthly, or semester, or annual programs
which are administered to the students—— As has been stated
before, you wili reach a small percentage of the students. It
is something that needs to be developed into their program.
They need to be confronted with it on a daily/weekly basis
until it comes home. The problem, as we have seen in our
alumni organization, is that the efforts of those people who do
bring that in—— By the time they get their point across, they
are so emotionally and physically worn, that they are not there
to benefit the undergraduates who will be there in the future.

1
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If that, something we are trying to address ourselves,
was made-:ia =more .comforting - situation : primarily.::from:-the
university's: standpoint,” or-just from: a.global standpoint,--and
the ‘benefits::were:rmade -somethingi that twaéfe takingi.a.higher
priority :than the social activities, we may see some positive
results. But it-.is a very difficult .thing on a day-to-day
basis.

I can tell you exactly what goes on. They, not only
confide in me, but I see what occurs. I am more likely to have
a feel for what goes on than any other alumni, who chooses not
to see it, or just does not see it.

4 ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Are there any questions for Mr.
Phelan? (no response) I really appreciate your help. In
fact, if we develop an area where we needbsome recommendations,
we may be in touch with you about it, because you are so close
to it. We appreciate your waiting all afternoon to be here
with us. _

. MR. PHELAN: I appreciate 1it. I hope my employer
feels that way, also. S " '

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ VILLANE: Tell him you were at the
Legislature. . ‘ '
- Is there anyone else in the audience who would like to
' be heard on this subject? (no response) If not, I want to
thank the members of the Committee, and also the staff
members. It has been a very long day without 1lunch, and we
appreciate your help and dedication.

The hearing is adjourned.

(HEARING CONCLUDED)
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MicHpesr RoDAIK

Good afternoon distinguished members of this committee
and fellow students present for this public hearing. My name
is Michael Rodak and I am the first student Trustee in
VMontclair State College.history. Therefore, I come today
"to speak as a student with insighp into the administrative
side of handling this serioué problem of drinking on campus.
 First, let me address the problem and the problems associated
with the policy regarding alcohol on campus.

Sometimes you may hear a student mention that his or her
campus ?s dry ‘and no fun. Well, fun is relative but I can
teli you éhat there is no such thing as a dry campus. Why?
There are several reasons.

i 1 - By the time an individual student reaches the college
.level, they will havé_already taken ‘a drink. Today there are
reports'that children as early as the age of ten (10) have
already had a beer~0r wine cooler; and yet tﬁere still are
other reports of teenagers being "wasted" at a party. Yes,
high school students and e;rliet for the most part have
already gotten.druﬁk at least once béfore they enter college,
Some unfortunaﬁely are victims of alcoholism.

| 2 - For years, drinking has been associated with fun.
This is an inherited problem. Some students believe they must
be drunk to enjoy the party;_ A side problem to this belief
is the way in which ad§ertisers are encouraging students to
drink. A recent national magazine article stated that the

wine industry coolers are packaging their product like some

soft drink or bubble gum. So the kid at 12 years old thinks

this is not a drink, it's okay to drink it. Beer companies
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have the best advertising by far. Unfortunately they center
around the party animal fSpuds McKenzief and they tell us to
dfink to relax. Their goal is to center the social scene
around alcohol and the only way you make friends is to have a
“"beer on me."

3 - Another inherited problem that a college faces is the
under educational awareness that drinking has dangers associated
with it. .Drinking in excess is bad at any age. Not only before
the legal age of 21, but all ages. Schools are not stressing

this in the secondary level.

4 - Today, there is less restrictions put on children of
all ages by parents. Partially because both parents must work
to make a living and pay 1its bills. They also think that their

child doesn't drink, nor are they interested if they do or not.
.Although wost parents‘are‘involved with the outside educaticn
of their>chilﬂrén, some still remain to be inactive parents on
this important subject. I can venture to say that more parents
today are iess interested and furtﬁer believe its okay if John
has "one drink." There are some parents who drink regularly
themselves and would encourage their kids to drink by buying

it for them.

Now, those were some pre-college nroblems but now the every-
day problem of on-campus drinking. Before I continue I would
like to thank each of you and the entire assembly for looking
into this matter. I also wish to thank the stﬁdents who have
spoken on this subject as‘well as the few concerned parents.

All should be commended.
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The préblem of drinking on campus varies at each individual
campus but I will try to encompassuthe most of them.

Secondly, in most cases students are cléssified as fun 1if
they party. Although some donft drink, there are those who do
because they want to feel part of the crowd.

' Thirdly, the main'fact of drinking on campus is because
there is no other social setting to enjoy anothef person's
company. Yes there are meetings and.lectures on campus, but
that's not the place for fun. The place for fun is when a
conce;t is on campus or a comedy at the campus pub, or a dance.
But these allhéoét megga dollars. Performers and staff cost
money and it adds up.

Lastly, the enforcement. I consider my collegé to be
enforcing the law and I don't see a major problem of drinking
in éompariSon to other campuses, but it occurs. Ifm not blind.
At Monﬁclair; if fou aré drinkiné you are immediatel; on
probation or withdrawn from housing. 1In our Clove Road
apartments we are 1imited to the size of a party and a request must
be in writing in advance. For your information, the Clove
Road apértments is the only portion that drinking is allowed
because residents are of the legal drinking age. As I began
this part I said enforcement is a problem. Students in dorms
have a right to privacy as grantedbby the Constitution. If
we do searches, is the legislature willing to go to court with
us when we get a 1awsuitz I sure hope so, because it will happen
when we start to do searches. The RA, and Preceptor systém is
an excellent system at each college but there are always a couple

who do not enforce the rules. Let's be honest, would you go tell

a fellow student not to drink at all? You don't want a bad

JIX




reputation and unfortunately the RA or Preceptor in some cases
would rather let you drink quietly instead of reporting you.

As for myself, I donft know of any individual cases of
RA neglect in the dorms at my campus but if I did get a compLaint,
I assure you I would repbrt it.

Another problem associated with drinking on campus is the
outside buyer. Mefchants are knowingly selling to minors and
bars are letting in underage drinkers. The most recent evidence
was a WABC-TV Nevaork report where 15 year olds tried to_gét
into clubs and bars. 1In all cases they got inm .and not only that,
but were never asked to_show identification. °

Local merchants would rather sell their stock and break

the law for the trade is there as well as the dollars: and

cents. The law is just not strict enough to curtail merchants
and club abuse. The market is there. Just go to any campus and
nearby you will see a: pub or liquor store. These places are

~vultures for the cbllege trade.
With this there is one additional problem. Identifications
for a long time have and can be altered. This is a business‘
in itself. Companies and stores as well as students get a
brisk trade.
Well, let me try to solve your dilemma by giving you a few
suggestions.
First, there needs to be a different identification designed
that cannot be altered.
Secondly, the laws must be stricter on local merchants, if they
are caught not checking ID's or selling alcohol to a minor.
Lastly and most important, there needs to be a large sum

of appropriations. designed to meet this problem. The following
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are suggestions:

A - To develop a concise program on the elementary
and secondary levels to teach Ehildren drinkingris harmful
and may be fatal. We must educate thebyouth that the
advertisers are wrong and so is alcohol. Students must be
taught the proper values because if not, higher education
will be faced with the continued same problem of today. Schools
must take the place of pafents for most are working today.

B - Fund community programs for the youth. There is no
place for a kid to go in most towns other than a friend's
house to "hang out" and drink. Local budgets jﬁst cannot'
finance a full student cultural program, therefore, the
help of the state budget is needed now.

C - Find and locate those students who are drinking
a?d establish clinics with funding thaF can assist these
studénts individually. N |

D - On the college kevel, funding is needed to offer that
cultural and”fug\type setting. Monies are needed in student
activities budgets which have seen a drop or less in the last
several years. We must reverse the‘trend and offer more activities
outside the classroom setting.

E - Also on the higher education level, counselors are
needed to assist students with a drinking or drug problem.
Students must realize there is more fun in living than drinking
and death. |

In conclusion, I would like to thank this committee and I

ask for your help now. I encourage any questions at this time.

Ly NewJersey State Library
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ARTICLE 1l. OBJECTS

As provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the objscts
of this Fraternity shall be to foster high ideals of friendship
among college women, to promote their educational and
cultural interests, t0 create in them a frue sense of social re-
sponsibility, and to develop in them the best qualities of

- character.
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Belta Gunma gfratfnﬁig

Tpsilon Tsi Chapler
Rutgers Hnibersity
Neta Brunsfuick, Nefw Jersey 08303

February 27, 1987

Dr. Paul Leath

Provost Rutgers University

18 Bishop Place

New Bruswick, New Jersey 08903

~ Dear Dr., Leath:

The Epsilon Psi Chapter of Delta Gamma would like to express
our deepest regret to the family of James Callahan, the members
of Lambda Chi Alpha, the students of Rutgers University and
particularly to the administration of Rutgers University for
the recent loss of a fellow student.

In response to the joint meeting of Rutgers Greek organizations
and the Assistant Provost, Greek organizations were asked to
provide material to ascertain the "intrinsic value'" of Greek
organizations to the Rutgers community.

We hope that the following questions will be answered by the
enclosed material. "Why is Delta Gamma important today?" Vhat

are the benefits of belonging to a Greek organization at Rutgers
University? What is different about the student who goes through
college with membership in a Greek organization compared with

the student who has ne such opportunity? Will there be a difference
in the students' development by the time each graduates? What

kind of difference?

Here are some facts to help answer these questions.
PROGRAMMING

- Our OPTIONS alcohol awareness and education program continues
to attract national attention as our office gets many requests
for presentations. This program was presented at Rutgers on

December 9, 1987 by Cathy Egley, a staff member of Delta Gamma




Executive Offices. Cathy made her presentation to the Alumni
Intrafraternity Council at 8:00 p.m. and to the Junior Panhel-
-lenic Council at 9:00 p.m. Dr. Bloustein was invited to attend

by letter and Roy Lenardson did attend. The Delta Gamma Foundation
made it possible for us to give every National Panhellenic Council
and National Intrafraternity Council group a copy of OPTIONS and
the video "A Risk Worth Taking". ZLach of our collegiate <chapters
owns the program. Each college or university where there is a
Delta Gamma chapter also has been given a copy.

— We are developing a wellness program called WELL AWARE to ad-
dress issues of particular importance to women such as nutrition,
stress management, date rape, eating disorders, etc. Look for the
introductory article in our Fraternity magazine, thé :ANCHORA,
which is available upon request at Bishop House 309.-

- In February of this year, we held a seminar for all chapter
programming advisors in Columbus, Ohio. They received expert
training in programming for the collegiate level. Two advisors

of the Epsilon Psi Chapter of Delta Gamma were in attendance and
have already communicated many new ideas to the chapter.

- Delta Gamma offers all collegian chapters a four year leadership
training program. Here at Rutgers University, we begin with the
pledges by educating them and preparing them for leadership roles.
- As sophomores, the members join committees and learn to work as
a group. They formulate programs and evaluate effective chapter
programming. ‘ ’

- During their junior year, members assume prominent leadership
rolés within the chapter and on campus. As leaders they learn the
‘effectiveness of delegation and metivation, : o

- As seniors,: members are .completing their college careers and are
preparing for the working world. Seminars on resumes, interview
process and networking are provided for them by Delta Gamma.

THE DELTA GAMMA FOUNDATION

- Helping others is a natural outreach of Delta Gamma. Once a
bond of friendship is established, it is only natural to want to
reach out to others. :

~ This year, over $1,000,000 in funds have been raised by Delta
Gammas. '

-~ The Epsilon Psi Chapter is very involved in helping others. Some
of the events we have crganized are a campus blood drive and a
Beautiful Eyes Contest, with all funds raised going to the Delta
Gamma Foundaticn (Sight Conservation and Aid to the Blind).

- We also participated in making toys for the blind and have often
- joined forces with another fraternity to visit patients at Robert
Wood Johnson Hospital.

- In addition we provide services to Rutgers students by reading
to the visually impaired.

THE CABLE CONNECTION

- The Cable Connection is Delta Gamma's networking program.

2%




This program is designed so that collegians can call upon
alumnae for career information, alumnae can serve as mentors
for others, and members entering or re-entering the work force
can contact Delta Gammas within a specific profession and call
upon them for support.

RITUAL

- Our ritual is not only a celebration of what we believe, it
reinforces the ideals by which we all live.

- The ritual is what makes us different from other social groups.
It is an affirmation of the high ideals that have been established
by our founders in 1873. Distance and geography does not alter
any of these beliefs. In fact these values and commitment still
continue til the present,.

~ This commitment to the total development of each woman's po-
tential is not only desired, but essential in our rapidly chang-
ing society. In a time of single-parent families and fluctuating
roles for women, we must provide a vaule-based organization to
foster the development of our college’ student Delta Gamma is
such an organlzatlon :

COLLEGIANS

- We have 120 collegiate chapters and .2 colonies (Boston Univ-
ersity and Southwest Texas STate University). )
- We pledged 4,489 women in 1987.

- We initiated 4,001 women in 1987.

=~ Our colleglans are outstanding! Many collegians are members:
of Scarlet Key, Pre-Law Society, Rutgers Community Outreach
Program, Marketing Society, New Student Orientation Program
~(one is the Assistant Coordinator of the program), Dean's List
and various Departmental and General Honors Program, etc.

ALUMNAE

'— We have 300+ alumnae groups around the world.

- We-have alumnae who are very active in the Rutgers Greek
Community. Dana Max is one example, she is Advisory Board
Chairman for the Epsilon Psi Chapter and currently Secretary

of the Alumni Intrafraternity Council. :
- Our local Central Jersey Alumnae Association created, devel~-
oped and distributed the -Talking Books for Hospitals. They have
also trained volunteers to implement this program in area hos-
pitals. This program can presently be seen operating in Robert
Wood Johnson University Hospital, St. Peter's Medical Center,
Roosevelt Hospital in Edison and Princeton Hospital as well as
in many other hospitals around the state. The local alumnae
have also volunteered for and supported the N.J. Society to
Prevent Blindness in Central N.J. during the past ten years.
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Please be assured that we will assist the University in any way
possible. Our National Representatives will be happy to meet
with you to provide additional information

Sincerely,
/ (ﬁ///(, AT )w

(/

'ocel {ernandez, ent of the Epsilon Psi Chapter of Delta Gamma
Blshop House 309

New Brunswick, N.J. 08903

cc: Council of Delta Gamma Fraternity
Executive Offices of Delta Gamma
Dr. E. Bloustein, President of Rutgers University
Stayton Wood, Dean of Students
Roy Lenardson, Assistant Dean of Fraternity and Sorority Affairs
Joan Carbone, Associate Dean of Students
Linda Weber, Province Collegiate Chairman
Dana Max, Advisory Board Chairman
Cindy Chalson, Proavince Alumnae Chairman
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The New Jersey State.Assembly

Special Committee on College Alcohol Abuse and Hazing
Second Hearing - March 25, 1988

10:30 A.M., State House Annex, Room L2

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, I am the Rev. Bob Bavender,
Executive Director of the Council for Alcohol/Drug Education of
New Jersey (CA/DE) and President of the New Jersey Christian Con-

ference on Legislation (c.c.L.).

Over the past L1 years, the Council for Alcohol/Drug Education has
provided to the public and parochial schools of New Jersey basic
education programs as to how and when alcohoi and other drugs affect
the human body.- {Qur teachers have worked in Elementary, Secondary, and
College cléssrooms, sharing the latest, verified information lifting
up the physical, mental and spiritual (12 steps) wisdom for an Alcohol/

Drug Free life.

The Christian Conference on Legislation has for many years consulted
with the Legislative Commititees, Governmment Agencies, and Professional
and Civic groups to bring about sound legislatiom that will strengthen

the Religious, Moral and Social Order in the State of New Jersey.

Both CA/DE and C;C.L. were strong components of the 2% Drinking Age
Coalition. Both did strongly urge the passage of Senate Bill 222y

to close the "private property" loop-hole in the 21 Drinking Law. The
Assembly failed to bring this Bill to vote, leaving open the questionable’
door for underage drinkipg in dorms, apartments, and fratermity and so-
rority houses owned or chartered by state college and universities in

New Jersey.

"We have anguished deeply with the parents, friends and responsible, law

abiding fellow students over the tragic death of Mr. James Colahan, only
18, at a hazing party drinking bout at Rutgefs University. We are also

seriously concerned about the same type of illegal, underage drinking

activities at Princeton University at which n . number of young drinkers
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required medical treatment, perhaps preventing other deaths.

We are most grateful that this Legislative Committee is acting in

gearch of the facts surrounding these tragedies.

Those of us within the "Drinking Age 21" coalition who remained firm
in leadership over the eight long years to regain for New Jersey Youth
the protective custody from beverage alcohol needed for the develop-
ment of a mature, healthy brain, are indeed saddened by Mr. Colahan's

death; but not at all surprised.

One of the major components, if not the leader of oppoéition to the
faising of the drinking age was our State University's top Administrators
including the President. Many of us will well'recall sitting through
-long days of hearings waiting for the University representatives to show
at the.request cf Legislative Committees. Thé apparent disrespect for the
due process of law and the defiance of responsibility for keeping the law

geems to continue in place at our state centers of higher education.

On Aprilb22, 1986, an article by Michele L. ﬁailey in The Déily Targum,

the University Community paper, is titled "RC Alcohol Policy Termed In-
effective”, According to the article, frequeht keg parties are held in.

the rocms. The resident hall preceptoré whose task it is to supervise

life on each floor openly admitted they do not report kegs seen in the
rocms., This was also reported true at Richardsen Apértments. Bruce Jacobs,
coordinator of residence 1life, stated, "No one from this office ever checks
the dormifories". It is obvious that neither dces his office check with

his Residence Hall Counselors or Floor Preseptcrs.

This condition has not changed in the near two years that have passed. It
appears instead, that the unchecked, underage drinking has grcwn more
serious; and led to the open hazing of first year students, and now, the

death of James Colahan.

Across this nation, university administrators are leading their students

in acceptance of a strong alcohol/drug free environment for academic
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excellence., The University of Wisconsin student body has accepted

such a challenge and ruled out drinking-parties on campus..

The Rutgers Administration has failed completely to move forward even
in the basic fundamentals of expecting their é%udents to live by the
law. This has created a double standard where leadership is being
trained. It appears that any responsible administration could make
gome headway in four years. Here at Rutgers we have a demonstration
of complete failure. VWe are in need of new 1eadership that can bring
about a climate of academic excellence in which our young men and women

can live and learn.

The United States Secretar& of Health and Human Services, Dr. Otis R.
Bowen has lifted up another area of serious problem on our college
campuses., At the National Conference on Alcoholism and Alcohol Abuse
on November 12, 1987 he stated, "According to the Wall Street Journal

brewers and beer distributors spend $15 - %320 million each year in campus

marketing. And I suspect they get a good return on their dollar. Alcohol
use on college campuses is pervasive, contributing to poor grades, excessive

vandalism, many injuries and not sc infrequent)death,”

"At least two states have restricted alcohol promotions on campuses and

some schools have done the same on their own."

The American Council on Alecohol Problems (ACAP) has joined Dr. Bowen and
Secretary Williém.Bennett, U.S. Department of Education, in calling for
State Legislatures to take action to restrict promotion of alcohol on
'3001lege and university campuses.,

CA/DE and C.C.L., New Jersey's state affiliate of ACAP, does herein urge
this Committee to study this area in our state and to seek the pasgsage of
any needed legislation that will curtail promotion of drinking in campus

papers and on campuses where the overwhelming majority are underage.

It is my conviction, with 4O years of work in the field of zlcohol counsel-
ling, research analysis and education, that a full 80% to 85% of our
young people will give us in lifestyle what we, their adult peers, expect

and support. As this nation now spends billions of dollars attempting to
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bring about a "Drug Free America”, let us now take the basic steps of this
dream by supporting tomorrow's leaders in freedom from the "wash" drug -

alcohol.
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